
  
TENTATIVE AGENDA & MEETING NOTICE 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 4, 2014 
8:30 A.M. 

WATAUGA COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 
COMMISSIONERS' BOARD ROOM 

 
TIME # TOPIC PRESENTER PAGE 

     

8:30 1  CALL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER   
 2  APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

January 21, 2014, Regular Meeting 
January 21, 2014, Closed Session 

 1 

 3  APPROVAL OF THE FEBRUARY 4, 2014 AGENDA  11 
8:35 4  PROPOSED PROCLAMATION HONORING THE 50TH 

ANNIVERSARY OF CALDWELL COMMUNITY COLLEGE AND 
TECHNICAL INSTITUTE (CCC&TI) 

DR. KEN BOHAM 13 

8:40 5  SMOKEY MOUNTAIN CENTER MATTERS 
A. Presentation of Quarterly Report  
B. Presentation of Annual Audited Financial Report 

MS. LISA SLUSHER  
15 
19 

8:45 6  PRESENTATION OF APPALACHIAN DISTRICT HEALTH 
DEPARTMENT’S ANNUAL REPORT AND STATE OF THE COUNTY 
HEALTH REPORT 

MS. BETH LOVETTE 75 

8:50 7  PROPOSED APPOINTMENT OF HOME AND COMMUNITY CARE 
BLOCK  GRANT (H&CCBG) ADVISORY COMMITTEE AND LEAD 
AGENCY 

MS. ANGIE BOITNOTTE 115 

8:55 8  TAX MATTERS 
A. Monthly Collections 
B. Refunds & Releases 

MR. LARRY WARREN  
119 
121 

9:00 9  PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE FOLLOWING ORDINANCES AS 
RECOMMENDED BY THE WATAUGA COUNTY PLANNING BOARD: 

A. Ordinance to Regulate High Impact Land Uses 
B. Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance 
C. Ordinance to Regulate Junkyards and Automotive 

Graveyards 
D. Ordinance to Regulate Wind Energy Systems 
E. Ordinance to Govern Structures on Land Adjacent to 

National Park Service Land 
F. Ordinance to Govern Subdivisions & Multi-Unit 

Structures 
G. Ordinance to Regulate Signs 
H. Height of Structures Ordinance 
I. Manufactured Home Parks Ordinance 

MR. JOE FURMAN 123 



Page 2 
Tuesday, February 4, 2014 

Tentative Agenda & Meeting Notice 
Board of County Commissioners 

 
 

TIME # TOPIC PRESENTER PAGE 
     

9:05 10  MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
A. Proposed Amendments to the Ambulance Franchise 

Agreement 
B. Proposed Lease for Probation and Parole 
C. Tentative Annual Pre-Budget Retreat Agenda  
D. Boards & Commissions 
E. Announcements 

MR. DERON GEOUQUE  
145 

 
155 
161 
163 
187 

9:10 11  PUBLIC COMMENT  188 
10:10 12  BREAK  188 
10:15 13  CLOSED SESSION 

Attorney/Client Matters – G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3) 
Land Acquisition – G. S. 143-318.11(a)(5)(i) 

 188 

10:30 14  ADJOURN   
 



AGENDA ITEM 2: 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
January 21, 2014, Regular Meeting 
January 21, 2014, Closed Session Minutes 
 
 
 
  

020414 BCC Meeting

1



MINUTES 
 

WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
TUESDAY, JANUARY 21, 2014 

 
The Watauga County Board of Commissioners held a regular meeting on Tuesday, 
January 21, 2014, at 5:30 P.M. in the Commissioners' Board Room of the Watauga County 
Administration Building, Boone, North Carolina. 
  
  PRESENT: Nathan Miller, Chairman 

David Blust, Vice-Chairman 
    Billy Kennedy, Commissioner 

John Welch, Commissioner 
Stacey “Four” Eggers, IV, County Attorney 

    Deron Geouque, County Manager 
    Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 
 

[Clerk’s Note:  Commissioner Yates was not present due to a prior commitment.] 
 
Chairman Miller called the meeting to order at 5:31 P.M. 
 
Vice-Chairman Blust opened the meeting with a prayer and Commissioner Welch led the Pledge 
of Allegiance. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Chairman Miller called for additions and/or corrections to the December 17, 2013, regular 
meeting minutes. 
 
Chairman Miller clarified that Vice-Chairman’s vote was counted as an “Aye” for the below vote 
and the additional statement (in bold) was added in the Clerk’s Note: 
 

Commissioner Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Yates, moved to accept the 
additional FY 2014 Senior Health Insurance Program (SHIIP) grant funds in the 
amount of $1,739 and approve the associated contract as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Kennedy, Welch, Yates) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Blust) 

 

[Clerk’s Note:  Vice-Chairman Blust returned from the recess immediately after the above 
vote was taken.  The Vice-Chairman’s vote was considered an “Aye” since he was present 
for the meeting and had only stepped away momentarily.] 

 

Commissioner Kennedy, seconded by Vice-Chairman Blust, moved to approve the December 17, 
2013, regular meeting minutes as amended. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Blust, Kennedy, Welch) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Yates) 

DRAFT 

020414 BCC Meeting

2



 
Commissioner Kennedy, seconded by Vice-Chairman Blust, moved to approve the December 17, 
2013, closed session minutes as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Blust, Kennedy, Welch) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Yates) 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Chairman Miller called for additions and/or corrections to the January 21, 2014, agenda. 
 
Chairman Miller stated that the Department of Social Services out-of-state travel request had 
been withdrawn and, therefore, requested removal of that item from the agenda. 
 
Commissioner Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Welch, moved to approve the January 21, 
2014, agenda as amended. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Blust, Kennedy, Welch) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Yates) 

VEHICLE EMERGENCY EQUIPMENT INSTALLATION REQUEST 
Captain Kelly Redmon presented bids to up-fit newly purchased patrol vehicles with emergency 
equipment and decals.  Bids were received from the following:  Anchor-Richey in the amount of 
$45,504.48, Dana Safety Supply in the amount of $26,487.35, and High Country 
Communications in the amount of $40,352.33 
 
Dana Safety Supply submitted the lowest responsive bid in the amount of $26,487.35.  Adequate 
funds were included in the FY 2014 Budget to cover the cost of the emergency equipment and 
decals. 
 
Vice-Chairman Blust, seconded by Commissioner Kennedy, moved to award the contract for 
emergency equipment and decals to Dana Safety Supply in the amount of $26,487.35. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Blust, Kennedy, Welch) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Yates) 

HIGH COUNTRY COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS’ REQUEST FOR SUPPORT OF THE 
URGENT REPAIR PROGRAM 
On behalf of Michelle Ball with High Country Council of Governments, Mr. Joe Furman, 
Watauga County Planning Director, presented a proposal for the High Country Council of 
Governments to apply for funds from the North Carolina Housing Finance Agency’s Urgent 

020414 BCC Meeting

3



Repair Program.  The request was due to the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 
Scattered Site Housing Program being eliminated at conclusion of the current funding cycle.  
Should the application be approved, a multi-county housing repair program would be established 
and administered by the High Country Council of Governments.  No local match was required.  
Mr. Furman stated that the Planning Department would work with HCCOG to locate participants 
for the program.  A proposed letter of support was presented for consideration. 
 
Commissioner Kennedy, seconded by Vice-Chairman Blust, moved to approve the letter of 
support for the High Country Council of Governments submitting an application to the North 
Carolina Housing Finance Agency for a multi-county Urgent Repair Program which would 
replace the soon to be defunct Community Development Block Grant Scattered Site Housing 
Program. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Blust, Kennedy, Welch) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Yates) 

TAX MATTERS 

A. Monthly Collections Report 
 

Tax Administrator Larry Warren presented the Tax Collections Report for the month of 
December 2013.  This report was presented for information only and, therefore, no action was 
required. 
 

B. Refunds and Releases 
 

Mr. Warren presented the following Refunds and Releases for December 2013, including a 
report from the new motor vehicle billing system, North Carolina Vehicle Tax System (NCVTS), 
for Board approval: 

TO BE TYPED IN MINUTE BOOK 
 
Commissioner Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Welch, moved to approve the Refunds and 
Releases Report for December 2013 including the North Carolina Vehicle Tax System Refunds 
and Releases Report, as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Blust, Kennedy, Welch) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Yates) 

 
C. 2014 Revaluation Update 

 

Mr. Warren provided an update on the 2014 revaluation process.  Mr. Warren stated that up to a 
10% decline in property values was expected; however, the overall decline was .33%, equating 
to approximately $85,000 in lost revenue if the tax rate remained the same.  Mr. Warren 
anticipated notices stating the new values would be ready to mail within the next few days and 
requested permission to send them.  Mr. Warren also stated that office space in the Appalachian 
Enterprise Center would be used to hear informal appeals, many of which could be handled 
administratively. 

020414 BCC Meeting

4



Commissioner Kennedy, seconded by Vice-Chairman Blust, moved to authorize the Tax 
Administrator to mail the prepared notices of value to property owners. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Blust, Kennedy, Welch) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Yates) 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

A. Proposed Amendments to the Ambulance Franchise Agreement 
 

County Manager Geouque stated that the Board approved the addition of a twelve (12) hour 
ambulance crew for Fiscal Year 2014.  In conjunction with the additional crew, staff was able to 
negotiate a waiver of the CPI increase for 2014.  The proposed contract reflects the additional 
twelve (12) hour crew and the waiving of the CPI escalator for 2014.  The proposed contract 
includes an effective date of January 1, 2014, and an expiration date of December 31, 2019. 
 
Chairman Miller requested the date of January 1, 2014, be changed to January 1, 2015 in both 
Sections 30 and 31 of the agreement. 
 
The County Manager stated that North Carolina General Statute 153A-46 required grants, 
renewals, extensions, or amendments of any franchise to be passed at two regular meetings of the 
Board of Commissioners before it may be officially adopted.  The County Manager requested 
approval at this time with the contract to be presented at the February 4, 2014, regular meeting 
for a second ratifying adoption. 
 
Commissioner Kennedy, seconded by Vice-Chairman Blust, moved to adopt the Ambulance 
Franchise Agreement as amended with the date changes recommended by Chairman Miller. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Blust, Kennedy, Welch) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Yates) 

 

[Clerk’s Note:  The Franchise Agreement will be presented for a second approval ratifying the above adoption at 
the February 4, 2014, regular meeting.] 
 

B. Proposed Resolution Establishing the Sheriff’s Salary   
 

County Manager Geouque stated that, per Statute, prior to the ending of the filing period for the 
fall elections, the Board must establish the salary for the Sheriff in order for filing fees to be 
determined as listed in the draft resolution.  The entry level salary on the County’s current pay 
plan is $67,585. 
 
Commissioner Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Welch, moved to adopt the resolution 
setting the salary for the office of Sheriff as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Blust, Kennedy, Welch) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Yates) 

020414 BCC Meeting

5



 
C. Proposed Dates for the Annual Pre-Budget Retreat   

 

County Manager Geouque presented the following proposed dates for the Annual Pre-Budget 
Retreat:  February 14 & 15 or February 21 & 22, 2014, with times proposed as 12:00 – 6:00 P.M. 
on Friday and 9:00 A.M. – 12:00 P.M. on Saturday.  Two days were required for the Retreat, 
however, times and dates were adjustable at the wish of the Board. 
 
By consensus, the Board agreed to hold the Annual Pre-Budget Retreat Friday, February 21 
through Saturday, February 22, 2014, with the Friday session beginning at 12:00 P.M. and the 
Saturday session beginning at 9:00 A.M. 
 

D. Discussion Regarding Proposed Amendments to the Town of Boone’s Unified 
Development Ordinance (UDO) 

 

County Manager Geouque presented a draft of amendments to the Town of Boone’s Unified 
Development Ordinance (UDO) regarding the Board of Adjustment and Planning Commission 
extraterritorial jurisdiction (ETJ) appointments.  A letter from the County Attorney including his 
comments and staff comments regarding the proposed amendments were also presented. 
 
The County Manager stated that feedback from the Board of Commissioners had been requested 
by January 17; however, the Town Manager had indicated that it would be acceptable for the 
County to provide feedback after the Commissioners meeting on January 21, 2014. 
 
County Attorney Eggers reviewed the comments in his letter per Commissioner Kennedy’s 
request. 
 
After review and discussion, the Board, by consensus, directed the staff to submit the County 
Attorney’s letter addressing the amendments to the Town of Boone Manager for consideration 
and directed the County Attorney to request to meet directly with the Town of Boone’s Attorney 
to work on incorporating the County’s recommendations into the draft Unified Development 
Ordinance. 
 

E. Proposed Purple Heart Proclamation   
 

County Manager Geouque stated that Mr. Lenny Lazzara, Commander of Chapter 639 Military 
Order of the Purple Heart, has requested the Board adopt a proposed proclamation declaring the 
County as a Purple Heart County.  The goal was to have all one hundred (100) counties in North 
Carolina approve the proclamation to raise awareness of the sacrifices for the people who have 
received the Purple Heart Award. 
 
Commissioner Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Welch, moved to adopt the proclamation as 
presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Blust, Kennedy, Welch) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Yates) 

 

020414 BCC Meeting

6



F. Boards & Commissions 
 

Recreation Commission 
County Manager Geouque stated that the terms of Recreation Commission members representing 
the Blowing Rock, Mabel, and Cove Creek elementary school districts as well as three Town of 
Boone representatives expired in December.  Parks and Recreation Director, Stephen Poulos, has 
requested recommendations for appointments to fill these positions. 
 
Cove Creek Principal, Toby Cone, wishes to represent the Cove Creek School district. 
 
Blowing Rock principal, Patrick Sukow, recommends the reappointment of Wendell Ellis as the 
Blowing Rock School district representative. 
 
Vice-Chairman Blust, seconded by Commissioner Kennedy, moved to appoint Toby Cone as the 
Cove Creek School District Representative and reappoint Mr. Wendell Ellis as the Blowing Rock 
School District Representative on the Watauga County Recreation Commission. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Blust, Kennedy, Welch) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Yates) 

 
County Manager Geouque stated that the Town of Boone has recommended that Mr. Greg 
Dobbins and Mr. Joseph Robinson be appointed as Town of Boone representatives to the 
Recreation Commission.  Consideration of appointments was tabled due to these being first 
readings. 
 
Social Services Advisory Board 
County Manager Geouque stated that Audrey Tate recently announced her resignation from the 
Social Services Advisory Board with her last meeting having been in December 2013.  Social 
Services Director, Jim Atkinson, has recommended Lynn Jackson Patterson for appointment to 
fill the unexpired term. 
 
Commissioner Kennedy, seconded by Vice-Chairman Blust, moved to appoint Lynn Jackson 
Patterson to fill the un-expired term of Audrey Tate. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Blust, Kennedy, Welch) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Yates) 

 
Watauga County Board of Adjustment 
County Manager Geouque stated that one appointment was still needed to the Watauga County 
Board of Adjustment which meets infrequently.  The two zoned areas of the County (Valle 
Crucis and Foscoe-Grandfather) must be represented on the Board; traditionally an attempt has 
been made to appoint representatives of watershed protection areas as well.  Technically, the seat 
is an at-large representative, though the last member who held this seat also resided in one of the 
watershed protection areas.  The other members represent Valle Crucis, Foscoe-Grandfather, 
Howards Creek watershed, and Middle Fork watershed. The term would be for three years. 

020414 BCC Meeting

7



 
The County Manager stated that a volunteer application had been received by Mr. David Hill 
who expressed interest in serving.  Consideration of an appointment was tabled due to this being 
a first reading. 
 
Town of Boone Board of Adjustment 
County Manager Geouque stated that the Town of Boone had recommended that Mr. Clinton 
Coffey be appointed as an Extra Territorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) representative on the Boone Board 
of Adjustment for a three-year term. 
 
Consideration of an appointment was tabled due to this being a first reading. 
 
Watauga County Nursing Home Community Advisory Committee 
County Manager Geouque stated that Ms. Julie Wiggins, Regional Ombudsman with High 
Country Council of Governments’ Area Agency on Aging, had requested that Ms. Wanda 
Branch be reappointed to the Watauga County Nursing Home Community Advisory Committee 
for a three-year term.  Consideration of an appointment was tabled due to this being a first 
reading. 
 
Watauga Medical Center Board of Trustees 
County Manager Geouque stated that the Watauga Medical Center Board of Trustees had 
recommended Mr. Sam Adams, Ms. Susan Roggenkamp, and Mr. Kenneth Wilcox for 
reappointment as Board Trustees.  Each of their terms would be effective January 1, 2014, 
through December 31, 2016.  Consideration of appointments was tabled due to these being first 
readings. 
 

G. Announcements 
 

County Manager Geouque presented a list of various “I Have A Dream” events scheduled 
through January 26, 2014. 
 
County Manager Geouque asked Board members to “Save the Date” as the Cooperative 
Extension has extended an invitation to attend the Small Farms Week kickoff event on Monday, 
March 24, 2014, at the Boone United Methodist Church.  Watauga County is hosting the event as 
Bill Moretz, local apple grower and former Farmer's Market president, was the recipient of the 
2013 North Carolina A&T State University Small Farmer of the Year Award.  The event, which 
will welcome more than 200 small farmers and Extension agents from across the state, begins at 
9:30 A.M.  NC A&T State University faculty member, Dr. Manny Reyes, will be the keynote 
speaker.  Breakout sessions on technical topics will follow and lunch will be served around noon. 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
There was no public comment. 

020414 BCC Meeting

8



CLOSED SESSION 
At 6:20 P.M., Commissioner Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Welch, moved to enter 
Closed Session to discuss Attorney/Client Matters, per G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3) and Land 
Acquisition, per G. S. 143-318.11(a)(5)(i). 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Blust, Kennedy, Welch) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Yates) 

 
Commissioner Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Welch, moved to resume the open meeting 
at 6:43 P.M. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Blust, Kennedy, Welch) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Yates) 

POSSIBLE ACTION AFTER CLOSED SESSION 
A discovery bill had been prepared and presented to Watauga County property owner, Ms. Anita 
Conrad, for property located at 642 Black Locust Circle (Parcel ID # 2828068037000).  Ms. Conrad 
had purchased the property from Rictur, Inc. on September 28, 2011.  The discovery bill was 
prepared on December 12, 2012, for a house that had never been taxed.  The discovery bill included 
taxes for the house only, for 2011 and 2012.  The bill was mailed to Ms. Conrad in March, 2013, as 
she was the current owner.  Ms. Conrad felt that since she did not purchase the property until 
September, 2011, she should not be responsible for the 2011 taxes.  It was the responsibility of 
Rictur, Inc. to list the house when it was completed in 2010.  Ms. Conrad had requested the 2011 tax 
be waived since she was not the owner the majority of that year.  Penalties, in the amount of ten 
percent (10%) of the tax owed had also accumulated.  Legal advice given in closed session included 
that Ms. Conrad, as the current property owner, was liable for the taxes.    
 
Vice-Chairman Blust, seconded by Commissioner Kennedy, moved to waive the penalty fees for 
taxes owed by Ms. Anita M. Conrad on Parcel ID 2828068037000 due to a discovery bill issues 
in March 2013 for the tax years of 2011 and 2012.  
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Blust, Kennedy, Welch) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Yates) 

ADJOURN 
Commissioner Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Welch, moved to adjourn the meeting at 
6:44 P.M. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Blust, Kennedy, Welch) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Yates) 

020414 BCC Meeting

9



 
 

 ________________________________ 
 Nathan A. Miller, Chairman 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________ 
Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 
 

020414 BCC Meeting

10



AGENDA ITEM 3: 

APPROVAL OF THE FEBRUARY 4, 2014, AGENDA 
 
 
 

020414 BCC Meeting

11



Blank Page 
 
 

020414 BCC Meeting

12



AGENDA ITEM 4: 

PROPOSED PROCLAMATION HONORING THE 50TH ANNIVERSARY OF CALDWELL 
COMMUNITY COLLEGE AND TECHNICAL INSTITUTE (CCC&TI) 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Dr. Ken Boham, CCC&TI President, will request the Board approve the proclamation honoring 
the 50th anniversary of Caldwell Community College and Technical Institute. 
 
Board action is requested to approve the included proclamation.   
 
 
 
  

020414 BCC Meeting

13



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
 
COUNTY OF WATAUGA 
 
 

PROCLAMATION HONORING THE 
50th ANNIVERSARY 

OF 
CALDWELL COMMUNITY COLLEGE AND TECHNICAL INSTITUTE 

 
 

WHEREAS, Caldwell Community College and Technical Institute (CCC&TI) was chartered 
on April 2, 1964; and 

 
WHEREAS, the College has provided fifty (50) years of service to the people of Watauga 

County; and 
 
WHEREAS, upholding  their College Motto, “Educational Opportunities  for All,” CCC&TI 

offers hundreds of day and evening courses at their Hudson and Watauga Campuses as well as 
online courses designed to fit any schedule or lifestyle; and 

 
WHEREAS, CCC&TI offers opportunities, in addition to higher education, for the people 

of Watauga County to train for new careers and explore new hobbies or interest through their 
Adult Corporate and Continuing Education courses; and 

 
WHEREAS,  the Watauga  County  Board  of  Commissioners  and  College  Trustees  have 

worked  in partnership over  the years by devoting  time, energy, and  talents  to  the College  to 
serve the educational and economic development needs of the people of Watauga County; and 

 
WHEREAS, over the past fifty (50) years the College has made valuable contributions to 

those education and economic needs of the citizens of Watauga County. 
 
NOW,  THEREFORE,  BE  IT  PROCLAIMED,  that  the  Watauga  County  Board  of 

Commissioners  extends  to  Caldwell  Community  College  and  Technical  Institute  sincere 
congratulations on this 50th Anniversary and best wishes for many years of continued success. 

 
 

 
ADOPTED this the 4th day of February, 2014. 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Nathan A. Miller, Chairman 
Watauga County Board of Commissioners 
 
ATTEST: 
___________________________ 
Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 

DRAFT 

020414 BCC Meeting

14



AGENDA ITEM 5: 

SMOKY MOUNTAIN CENTER MATTERS 
A.  Presentation of Quarterly Report 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Ms. Lisa Slusher, Smoky Mountain Finance Director, will present the Smoky Mountain Center 
Quarterly Reports as required by Statute.  The report is included in your packet for review. 
  
The report is for information only; therefore, no action is required. 
 
 
 
  

020414 BCC Meeting

15



                 W A T A U G A   C O U N T Y 
                               FINANCE OFFICE 
 814 West King St., Room 216 - Boone, NC  28607  - Phone (828) 265-8007  Fax (828) 265-8006 
 
 
M E M O R A N D U M     
 
 
 TO:  Deron Geouque, County Manager 
 FROM: Margaret Pierce, Finance Director 
 SUBJECT: Smoky Mountain Center Quarterly Reports  
 DATE: January 14, 2014 
 
 
Attached is a copy of the quarterly fiscal monitoring report (FMR) from Smoky 
Mountain Center for the quarter ended September 30, 2013.  This fiscal monitoring report 
was provided by Smoky Mountain Center to comply with the G.S. 122C-117(c).   
 
excerpt from G.S. 122C-117(c) 
 

(c)        Within 30 days of the end of each quarter of the fiscal year, the area 
director and finance officer of the area authority shall provide the quarterly report 
of the area authority to the county finance officer. The county finance officer shall 
provide the quarterly report to the board of county commissioners at the next 
regularly scheduled meeting of the board. The clerk of the board of 
commissioners shall notify the area director and the county finance officer if the 
quarterly report required by this subsection has not been submitted within the 
required period of time. This information shall be presented in a format prescribed 
by the county. At least twice a year, this information shall be presented in person 
and shall be read into the minutes of the meeting at which it is presented. In 
addition, the area director or finance officer of the area authority shall provide to 
the board of county commissioners ad hoc reports as requested by the board of 
county commissioners. 

020414 BCC Meeting

16



020414 BCC Meeting

17



020414 BCC Meeting

18



AGENDA ITEM 5: 

SMOKY MOUNTAIN CENTER MATTERS 
B.  Presentation of Annual Audited Financial Report 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Ms. Lisa Slusher, Smoky Mountain Finance Director, will present the Smoky Mountain Center 
Annual Audited Financial Statements as required by Statute.  The report is included in your 
packet for review.  
  
The report is for information only; therefore, no action is required. 
 
 
  

020414 BCC Meeting

19



                 W A T A U G A   C O U N T Y 
                               FINANCE OFFICE 
 814 West King St., Room 216 - Boone, NC  28607  - Phone (828) 265-8007  Fax (828) 265-8006 
 
 
 
M E M O R A N D U M     
 
 
 TO:  Deron T. Geouque, County Manager 
 FROM: Margaret Pierce, Finance Director 
 SUBJECT: Smoky Mountain Center Audited Financial Statements  
 DATE: January 14, 2014 
 
 
Attached is a copy of the audited financial report from Smoky Mountain Center for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2013.  This audited financial report was provided by Smoky 
Mountain Center to comply with the G.S. 122C-117(d).  A representative from Smoky 
will be at the meeting to address any questions. 
 
 
excerpt from G.S. 122C-117(d) 
 

(d)        A multicounty area authority shall provide to each board of county 
commissioners of participating counties a copy of the area authority's annual audit. The 
audit findings shall be presented in a format prescribed by the county and shall be read 
into the minutes of the meeting at which the audit findings are presented. 

020414 BCC Meeting

20



020414 BCC Meeting

21



020414 BCC Meeting

22



020414 BCC Meeting

23



020414 BCC Meeting

24



020414 BCC Meeting

25



020414 BCC Meeting

26



020414 BCC Meeting

27



020414 BCC Meeting

28



020414 BCC Meeting

29



020414 BCC Meeting

30



020414 BCC Meeting

31



020414 BCC Meeting

32



020414 BCC Meeting

33



020414 BCC Meeting

34



020414 BCC Meeting

35



020414 BCC Meeting

36



020414 BCC Meeting

37



020414 BCC Meeting

38



020414 BCC Meeting

39



020414 BCC Meeting

40



020414 BCC Meeting

41



020414 BCC Meeting

42



020414 BCC Meeting

43



020414 BCC Meeting

44



020414 BCC Meeting

45



020414 BCC Meeting

46



020414 BCC Meeting

47



020414 BCC Meeting

48



020414 BCC Meeting

49



020414 BCC Meeting

50



020414 BCC Meeting

51



020414 BCC Meeting

52



020414 BCC Meeting

53



020414 BCC Meeting

54



020414 BCC Meeting

55



020414 BCC Meeting

56



020414 BCC Meeting

57



020414 BCC Meeting

58



020414 BCC Meeting

59



020414 BCC Meeting

60



020414 BCC Meeting

61



020414 BCC Meeting

62



020414 BCC Meeting

63



020414 BCC Meeting

64



020414 BCC Meeting

65



020414 BCC Meeting

66



020414 BCC Meeting

67



020414 BCC Meeting

68



020414 BCC Meeting

69



020414 BCC Meeting

70



020414 BCC Meeting

71



020414 BCC Meeting

72



020414 BCC Meeting

73



020414 BCC Meeting

74



AGENDA ITEM 6: 

PRESENTATION OF APPALACHIAN DISTRICT HEALTH DEPARTMENT’S ANNUAL 
REPORT AND STATE OF THE COUNTY HEALTH REPORT 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Ms. Beth Lovette, Appalachian District Health Director, will present the health department’s 
annual report for Fiscal Year 2012-2013 along with the state of the county health report.   
 
The report is for information only; therefore, no action is required. 
  

020414 BCC Meeting

75



______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
BUSINESS OFFICE  ALLEGHANY CO. HEALTH DEPT. ASHE CO. HEALTH DEPT. WATAUGA CO. HEALTH DEPT. 
PO   Box 309  157 Health Services Road  PO   Box 208  126 Poplar Grove Connector  
Sparta, NC  28675  Sparta, NC  28675   Jefferson, NC  28640  Boone, NC  28607 
336-372-8813  336-372-5641   336-246-9449  828-264-6635    
336-372-7793 Fax                        336-372-7793 Fax                                           336-246-8163 Fax                        828-264-4997 Fax 
  

 
      

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Memo to:   Deron Geouque, Watauga County Manager 
Memo from:  Beth Lovette, Health Director, Appalachian District Health Department 
Subject:  Health Department Annual Report and State of the County Health Report   
Date:    January 8, 2014 
 
This memo is to request an opportunity to present the Appalachian District Health Department 
Annual Report for Fiscal Year 2012-13 and the current State of the County Health Report to the 
Watauga County Board of Commissioners. I know we had discussed a January meeting, but 
weather has changed by evening commitments in January.  If possible, I would like present on 
Tuesday, February 4 at the 8:30 AM meeting.  If this time is not available, please let me know 
what would work best.   
 
Attached is a PDF file of the Annual Report.  I will bring copies to the meeting.  I will also 
forward a copy of the State of the County Health Report as soon as it is finalized. 
 
Thank you for your willingness to work with me to continue to improve public’s health in 
Watauga County! 

APPALACHIAN DISTRICT HEALTH DEPARTMENT 
DISTRICT OFFICE: 126 Poplar Grove Connector, Boone, NC 28607 

Telephone 828-264-4995    Fax 828-264-4997 
www.apphealth.com  

 
Health for All: Promote. Prevent. Empower. 

 

020414 BCC Meeting

76



INSIDE:   

Page 2 Community Transformation Grant 

Page 3 Community Transformation Grant 

(cont.), Healthy Youth, Customer Service 

Page 4 Electronic Medical Records, Data 

Graphs (Communicable Disease, Environmen-

tal Health 

HEALTH  FOR  ALL :   
PROMOTE .  PREVENT .  EMPOWER .  

 

Appalachian District Health Department 
 
                                                      ANNUAL REPORT 2012 –2013 

Letter from Ken Richardson, Appala-

chian District Board Chair: 

 

It has been my pleasure to serve Alle-

ghany, Ashe and Watauga Counties as 

Chair of the Appalachian District Board 

of Health.  Our District Health Depart-

ment is one of six multi-county health 

departments in North Carolina that take 

advantage of the cost savings that can 

be achieved through sharing staff and 

resources across county lines.  A recent 

study showed that district health depart-

ments, on average, receive larger pro-

portions of funding from sources other 

than your county tax dollars.  

(Comparing North Carolina’s Local 

Public Health Agencies:  The Legal 

Landscape, the Perspectives, and the 

Numbers; UNC School of Government, 

May 2012.)  Appalachian District 

Health Department currently receives 

16% of total funding from county allo-

cations to the District health budget. 

Governance of Appalachian District 

Health Department is through the 

Board of Health.  Each county appoints 

one county commissioner to the Board 

of Health and those three commission-

ers appoint the other board members as 

outlined in NC General Statutes.  Many 

thanks to Commissioner Karen Leys, 

Alleghany; Commissioner Judy Poe, 

Ashe; and Commissioner Perry Yates, 

Watauga for their dedication to the 

health of the counties they serve.  A 

complete Board of Health member 

listing, meeting schedules, agendas and 

minutes can be found at http://

www.apphealth.com/about-us/board-of

-health/.  

Greetings, 

 

I have been the Local Health Director with the Appalachian District Health Depart-

ment for two years now, working with a great team to improve the public’s health 

in Alleghany, Ashe and Watauga Counties. We strive to promote safe and healthy 

living, prevent disease and protect the environment through education and the pro-

vision of the essential services of public health. We provide full service health de-

partments in each county – including health care services for all ages, women’s 

health services, communicable disease tracking, trending and treatment, immuniza-

tions, environmental health inspections and permitting and emergency prepared-

ness.  We are also pleased to work within each county to provide health promotion/

prevention activities that help all of our citizens improve their health. If you have a 

question about public health or public health services, please don’t hesitate to call 

any one of our health departments for assistance. 

 

The NC Association of Local Health Directors recently adopted five specific goals 

from Healthy North Carolina 2020 objectives.  The table can be found at 

www.apphealth.com and demonstrates the alignment of our District’s top health 

initiatives developed from our Community Health Needs Assessment with NC 

2020 goals for local health departments. 

 

For details around individual strategies for each county, please contact me at 

beth.lovette@apphealth.com. Or visit our website at www.apphealth.com .  

 

Yours in good health,  

Beth 
Beth Lovette, RN, MPH, Health Director 

020414 BCC Meeting

77

http://www.apphealth.com/about-us/board-of-health/
http://www.apphealth.com/about-us/board-of-health/
http://www.apphealth.com/about-us/board-of-health/


ACHIEVING TARGETED IMPROVEMENTS IN HEALTH OUTCOMES 

                  The Communities Putting Prevention to Work set the stage for the Appalachian District community to lead efforts with the 

Community Transformation Grant Project, a five year Centers for Disease Control and Prevention Grant, in partnership with the NC Re-

gion 3 health departments and Appalachian Partners in Public Health. This initiative serves the Appalachian District plus Wilkes, Yadkin, 

Stokes, Surry, Forsyth, Davie, and Davidson Counties. The Community Transformation Grant Project FY 12-13 accomplishments in-

clude: 

 

 

#2 OBESITY PREVENTION 

In 2012-13, Appalachian District continued to make great strides. 

Strong partnerships and opportunities were provided by the Com-

munities Putting Prevention to Work grant. Accomplishments in-

cluded: 

-The Take Step Two campaign, to invite the community to take 

charge by taking the next step at www.takesteptwo.com  

-31 childcare centers adopting new or revised policies to enhance 

nutrition and/or physical activity 

-3 school districts increased resources for promoting healthy, active 

lifestyles among students and staff 

-Multiple healthy eating supports such as community gardens  at 

schools, senior centers, and multi-unit housing communities  

-Support and outreach to those most in need, such as expansion of 

Ashe Outreach Ministries and initiation of a healthy living initiative 

at the Hospitality House of Boone, and cooking supplies for the 

F.A.R.M. Café in Boone. 

-Support and funding to all three counties’ Farmer’s Markets to 

increase marketing opportunities to promote healthy eating as well 

as customer-centered acceptance of SNAP-EBT and WIC farmer’s 

market vouchers 

-Serving as grant holder and developing partnerships with Blue 

Ridge Women in Agriculture and Heifer International to be a 

founding partner of Blue Ridge Seeds of Change. Find out more at 

http://www.blueridgeseedsofchange.org/ 

-Partnerships within the region to increase active living and support 

our economy including: 

-Sparta, West Jefferson, and Boone all adopting complete streets 

resolutions to support the consideration of all infrastructures for 

safe use of roadways by all users including pedestrians, cyclists, 

and bus riders when possible  

-Town of Sparta to develop a streetscape plan to increase safe, ac-

tive pedestrian activity downtown 

-Town of West Jefferson implemented a redesigned streetscape to 

provide safe, active pedestrian activity downtown 

-Watauga County Tourism Development Authority placed prime 

signage to promote the Rocky Knob Bike Park 

-High Country Pathways completed design to open the first link 

of the Middle Fork Greenway  

#1 TOBACCO FREE LIVING 

Development of a regional tobacco prevention and 

control plan, including support for landlords of pri-

vate, affordable housing, and the Northwest Region-

al Housing Authority in creating smoke-free multi-

unit housing over the next several months while of-

fering resources for individuals to quit tobacco use. 

To learn more about resources or projects like this 

across NC, go to www.smokefreehousingnc.com  

Tobacco prevention and control  

Tobacco use is still the leading cause of preventable 

death in the United States. To be most effective in 

reversing diseases caused by tobacco use, Appalachi-

an District has partnered with Wilkes and Caldwell 

Counties with the Northwest Tobacco Prevention 

Coalition to help prevent youth from initiating smok-

ing, protect individuals from harmful secondhand 

smoke, and provide resources to individuals, clini-

cians, business owners, and others interested in sup-

porting those who want to quit. In 2012-13, the 

Northwest Tobacco Prevention Coalition, in partner-

ship with the Region 3 counties, made the following 

accomplishments 

-8 youth groups received mini-grants to be peer 

spokespersons in their school and community to pre-

vent youth from smoking and promote smoke-free 

opportunities in the community 

The Fiscal Year 2012-2013 brought Appalachian 

District Health Department the opportunity for a 

Youth Tobacco Prevention Grant, allowing for con-

tinued efforts in decreasing youth initiation through 

creating and sustaining TRU clubs.   

A region wide training was held at The Vineyard in 

Stokes County North Carolina.   Approximately 80 

students from seven schools across the region attend-

ed the training.  They did YES! Advocacy training 

for half the day, the other half they did team building 

activities.  The training conducted by YES! was 

aimed toward policy and advocacy.   

Davidson and Forsyth County combined to do their 

own youth training at Thomasville High School in 

Davidson County.   

The Oakwoods Country Club located in Wilkesboro, 

decided to implement a smoke-free indoors policy.    

The NC Quitline was advertised through various 

forms of media (internet, newspaper, TV, billboards, 

radio) in an effort to reach more individuals who 

want to quit. Learn more at www.quitlinenc.com  

#3 ACTIVE LIVING 

CTG (partnered with Appalachian Partners in Public Health) has con-

tracted with Destination by Design to conduct a regional built environ-

ment assessment. Through this process, the regional collaborative and 

community partners identified projects for each individual county. Alle-

ghany County identified the Alleghany Wellness Center to create a site 

Master Plan. Ashe County identified Beaver Creek Trail Master Plan and 

Watauga County identified Middle Fork Greenway as top priorities. To 

see the Health by Design Region 3 Master Plan, go to http://

issuu.com/dbdplanning/docs/health_by_design?e=0/4503531 

020414 BCC Meeting

78

http://www.takesteptwo.com
http://www.blueridgeseedsofchange.org/
http://www.smokefreehousingnc.com
http://www.quitlinenc.com
http://issuu.com/dbdplanning/docs/health_by_design?e=0/4503531
http://issuu.com/dbdplanning/docs/health_by_design?e=0/4503531


HEALTHY YOUTH 

Health by Design Region 3 Master Plan.  Health by Design Region 3 Master 

Plan.  Positive Parenting Program:  

Supporting positive outcomes for youth with Triple P 

In 2012, Appalachian District began working toward community supports for 

positive parenting in recognition of data received in the 2011 Community 

Health Assessment. As a recipient of a NC Division of Public Health grant, 

Appalachian District has begun providing supports for positive parenting in 

partnership with Smart Start Partnerships and other key community partners. 

Triple P is an evidence-based program that has been shown to decrease sub-

stantiated cases of child maltreatment and abuse. The program provides easy 

to use information and tips that everyone working with families can use to 

help parents respond to challenging parenting situations and build positive 

relationships with their children. In 2012-13, 31 community providers 

achieved Accreditation status as Triple P Practitioners.They will be  using 

this to provide support and tools in partnership with parents as they build on 

strengths. Collaboration with Ashe Partnership for Children and The Chil-

dren’s Council in Watauga County has provided groundwork for the develop-

ment of a district-wide steering committee. In the upcoming year, the group 

will be increasing its capacity through training of additional practitioners and 

increasing public awareness so parents know how to access the services with-

in their community. A chief priority for the 2013-14 year will be launching 

the program in Alleghany County in collaboration with community partners 

and the Alleghany Partnership for Children. 

Substance abuse prevention for youth 

In 2012-13, Appalachian District Health Department continued partnership 

with the Watauga Substance Abuse Prevention collaborative group. One 

prime way this group has been involved includes review of current data with 

community leaders and partners. In 2012, Appalachian District Health De-

partment provided guidance and support to Watauga County Schools and 

Watauga Substance Abuse Prevention in their utilization of the Youth Risk 

Behavior Survey. These reports provide key baseline data which may be 

tracked over time to focus efforts for successful outcomes that support 

healthy living and positive academic outcomes among high school youth. 

Find out more at: https://www.facebook.com/WataugaSAP 

Prescription Medication Abuse Prevention 

Appalachian District Health Department is a partner with the Project Lazarus 

coalition, led by Rachel Florence with High Country Community Health. The 

Fostering a Positive Customer- 

Focused Culture 
 
Appalachian District Health Department is making 

strides to ensure that our clients receive the best 

experience possible, whether they are bringing their 

children in for immunizations or applying for a 

septic permit, we want them to be satisfied with our 

services.   

During the past year, ADHD has implemented a 

selection of surveys to assess the client experience. 

First, a client satisfaction survey was put into oper-

ation in the clinics. This survey allows our clients 

the opportunity to provide feedback on whether or 

not our staff were friendly and respectful; delivered 

timely service; if our hours of operation met their 

needs; if they would recommend our services to 

others; etc. The survey results are driving us to 

change the way we do business, from ensuring a 

smiling face at check in to figuring out how to de-

crease wait times. Next, a client satisfaction survey 

was implemented in the Environmental Health Of-

fices, and placed on our website . This survey al-

lows building contractors, realtors, restaurant own-

ers and community members to provide feedback 

on how we can continually improve our services. 

The Environmental Health Advisory Committee 

was created to evaluate all aspects of the water pro-

tection permitting process. The committee, with 

representation from both private and public sectors, 

worked  to improve the quality and efficiency of 

the water protection permitting process. Additional-

ly, EH Staff have instituted new Quality Assurance 

Plans for both water protection and food/lodging 

sections which include internal review of permits/

inspection reports and staff performance as well as 

yearly evaluation of the programs by the state. Fi-

nally, EH staff are striving to improve communica-

tion with stakeholders by providing education clas-

ses and monthly reports outlining permitting, fee 

collection and permit turn-around times to realtors, 

local home building associations and food service 

staff. Last, a community survey was conducted to 

determine if there are any gaps in services in the 

community and to assess how the health depart-

ment is doing as a whole. Suggestions from the 

community included: expanding dental health ser-

vices, hiring an interpreter, offering some late clin-

ics, and for us to continue to support promotion of 

local foods program with community partners. Ap-

palachian District Health Department is continu-

ously looking for ways to improve operations and 

is using input from customers and the community 

to guide those improvements. Our aim is to assess 

the effectiveness of our services, improve health 

outcomes, and provide accountability to elected 

officials and the public. 

Visit our website at www.apphealth.com 

#4 HEALTHY EATING 

-Supporting 5 Community Supported 

Agriculture (CSA) Programs to in-

crease availability/promotion of 

healthy eating. 

-Provided tables, tents, and signage 

for the Lansing Farmers’ Market. 

-Conducted cooking demos at local 

markets with Blue Ridge Seeds of 

Change, Blue Ridge Women in Agri-

culture and the Children’s Playhouse 

in Watauga County. 

-Conducted trainings w/Appalachian 

Sustainable Agriculture Project 

(ASAP) for farmers and market man-

agers to increase availability and pro-

motion of healthy eating. 

#5 OVERALL 

Development of a regional collabo-

rative. To date, the collaborative has 

met in December and June bringing 

in community partners from various 

sectors such as: planning, parks and 

recreation, school nurses, farmers 

and multi-unit housing property 

owners to discuss CTG strategies 

and recognize community partners 

for their efforts. 

Dissemination of a regional media 

campaign highlighting local 

farmer’s markets, smoke-free hous-

ing, and Community Transformation 

Grant Project efforts at 
www.nwtransformationproject.org   

020414 BCC Meeting

79

https://www.facebook.com/WataugaSAP
http://www.nwtransformationproject.org


Each county Communicable Disease nurse works closely with county Animal Control to quickly 

identify potential rabies exposures and to recommend the appropriate course of treatment.  The 

Communicable Disease nurse investigates each report of an animal bite or bat exposure to deter-

mine if there is a true potential for an exposure to rabies.  The following shows rabies statistics for 

the calendar year 2012. 

NEW: Electronic Medical Records 

When you visit the health department 

clinic, you might be surprised that the 

nurse is no longer documenting on a 

paper chart but instead is using a small 

computer tablet. Public Health has gone 

high-tech! In an effort to maximize effi-

ciencies and improve the quality of pa-

tient care, Appalachian District Health 

Department implemented “Patagonia 

Health”, a new Electronic Medical Rec-

ord (EMR) in all three local health de-

partments.  Patagonia Health is a Mean-

ingful Use Certified EMR, which means 

the health departments receive federal 

incentives for each provider using the 

system. There are specific public health 

applications within the EMR that keep 

us in compliance with state and federal 

programs. The integration of Patagonia 

Health EMR has led to opportunities for 

quality improvement. EMRs can help 

improve health care quality, efficiency, 

and safety in the following ways: 

*Quick access to patient records for more 

coordinated, efficient care 

*Enhanced decision support, clinical 

alerts, reminders, and medical infor-

mation 

*Legible, complete documentation that 

facilitates accurate coding and billing 

*Safer, more reliable prescribing 

*Reduced need to fill out the same forms 

at each office visit 

*Reliable point-of-care information and 

reminders notifying providers of im-

portant health interventions 

*Convenience of e-prescriptions elec-

tronically sent to pharmacy 

 

RABIES STATISTICS 2012 Alleghany Ashe Watauga 
District 

Totals 

Number of bite/exposure reports 12 49 99 160 

Number of animals that tested 

positive from those reported 2 1 3 6 

Number of persons for whom 

Post-Exposure Rabies Therapy 

was recommended 
3 3 22 28 

FOOD & LODGING ACTIVITIES 

COUNTY Inspections 
Compliance 

Visits 

Food, Lodging, 

Pool Permits 

Consultative Site 

Visits 

Ashe 194 12 54 389 

Alleghany 199 12 39 156 

Watauga 593 55 223 460 

District Totals 986 79 316 1005 

WATER PROTECTION UPDATE 

COUNTY Permits Issued 
Avg days to 

first visit 

Avg days to 

issuance 

Ashe 796 11 16 

Alleghany 397 4 8 

Watauga 910 13 19 

District Totals 2103 9 14 

COMMUNICABLE DISEASE REPORT 2012* 

*The complete report can be viewed  At www.apphealt h.com   

DISEASE 
ALLEGHANY 

CASES 2012 

ASHE CASES 

2012 

WATAUGA CAS-

ES 2012 

DISTRICT TOTAL 

PER DISEASE 2012 

Chlamydia 19 23 107 149 
E.coli-shiga toxin producing 0 1 0 1 

Gonorrhea 0 1 8 9 
Haemophilus Influenza 0 0 1 1 

Hepatitis A 0 0 1 1 
Hepatitis B-Acute 0 0 0 0 

Hepatitis B-Chronic 0 0 3 3 
Lyme Disease 1 1 4 6 

Meningitis-disease 0 0 1 1 
Non-gonococcal urethritis 0 0 1 1 

Pertussis 1 7 0 8 
Rocky Mountain Spotted Fever 0 1 2 3 

Salmonellosis 1 5 5 11 
Syphilis 0 0 0 0 

Tuberculosis 1 0 0 1 

  

Visit our website at www.apphealth.com 

020414 BCC Meeting

80



Watauga County Health Department  
Clinic Phone:  264-6635 Environmental Health Phone:  264-4995 

Travel Vaccines 

The Health Department nurses are trained in the administration and 

consultation of travel vaccines. The nurse uses the Center for Disease 

Control (CDC) web site to advise the traveler on recommended vac-

cines for their destination. The nurse reviews the vaccines the traveler 

has already had (if record is available) and provides them with the 

most recent information available about vaccines. During the Travel 

Consultation the nurse also advises on the need for common adult 

vaccines which include Tdap, Hepatitis A, Hepatitis B, Varicella, Influ-

enza, and Pneumonia. Vaccines administered for travel may include 

Typhoid, MMR, Meningitis, Polio, Rabies and Yellow Fever. Parents 

with children who travel are educated on the Childhood Vaccine 

Schedule as well as travel vaccines for the child. The consultation also 

includes education on the spread and prevention of other diseases/

illnesses for the travel destination for which there are no vaccines 

such as Malaria. If needed the traveler is provided with a prescription 

for Malaria prevention medication. Appalachian District Health Dept. 

has the distinction of being the only designated Yellow Fever Vaccina-

tion Center in the High Country. This service is frequently utilized by 

travelers with Samaritan’s Purse, App  State, sight seers and mission 

trips.  Insurance plans can be billed for the service or clients can pay 

privately. 

Watauga Health Department Staffing 

 40  Employees work in the Watauga County Health 

Department Programs.   

 3 positions are Environmental Health Specialists working in 

the Water Protection Program (well and septic permitting).   

 11 additional employees serve Watauga in leadership roles 

for the District (serving all three counties). 

 Pediatric Dentistry:  Dr. Dean Stacy, DDS, every Tuesday, Dr. 

Robbie Bridgeman, DDS, every Friday. 

 Dr. Danielle Darter, a Family Practice physician with 

certification in women’s health and Rachel Bridgeman, 

Family Nurse Practitioner, provide high quality, 

compassionate care five days/week. 

Environmental Health Update: 

With the resignation of Alan 
McKinney, the District promoted 
Joe Holder to the District Pro-
gram Specialist for Water Protec-
tion programs.  Joe brings years 
of experience from Alleghany, 
Surry and Forsyth Counties.   

We continue to work with a group 
of stakeholders through the Envi-
ronmental Health Advisory Com-
mittee.  A key recommendation of 
the Committee has been moving 
away from cumbersome paper 
forms and adopting new infor-
mation technology.  The Board of 
Health funded new, improved 
technology for Food and Lodging 
permitting and inspections and 
Water Protection permitting and 
inspections. When fully imple-
mented we expect efficiency and 
customer service will continue to 
improve as we strive to move to-
ward a paperless system and im-
proved integration with our coun-
ty partners. 

0
200
400
600
800

1000
1200
1400
1600

P
ri

m
a

ry
 C

a
re

C
h

ild
 H

ea
lt

h

C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
b
le
…

Fa
m

ily
 P

la
n

n
in

g

H
e

al
th

 C
h

o
ic

e 
K

id
s

Im
m

u
n

iz
at

io
n

s

M
a

te
rn

it
y 

C
lin

ic

O
th

e
r 

Se
rv

ic
es T
B

ST
D

D
e

n
ta

l

Watauga Clinic Visits

Total Visits = 
4,957

020414 BCC Meeting

81



Service programs provided by the health department in 

Fiscal Year 2012-13 with programs that are mandated 

by the State in bold type. 

 

Family Planning 
Maternal Health 

Dental 

Tuberculosis 

Komen Grant 

Child Health 

Primary Care/Adult Health 

AIDS/HIV 

Diabetes Self Management 

Immunizations 

Wise Woman 

Ashe School Based Health Center 

Pregnancy Care Management 

Alleghany Community Alternatives Program for Disa-

bled 

   Adults 

Care Coordination for Children 

Youth Tobacco Prevention 

Positive Parenting Program (Triple P) 

Community Health Promotion and Wellness 

Northwest Tobacco Prevention 

Community Transformation Grant 

Communities Putting Prevention to Work Grant 

Water Protection (Septic and Well permitting) 

Food and Lodging (Permitting and Inspections) 

General Administration 

Emergency Preparedness 

Alleghany/Ashe Health Alliance 

Seeds of Change Grant 

School Nurse Initiative 

Northwest Incubator Project 

Women, Infants, Children Nutrition Program (WIC) 
 

How can your Health  
Department help you? 
 
 Need a doctor?  Call us.  We ac-

cept almost all insurance plans, 
including Medicaid, Medicare, 
BCBS and private patient pay 
on a sliding fee scale. 

 Need a dentist for your child?  
Call us to schedule an appoint-
ment.  We see kids with Medi-
caid or private pay on a sliding 
fee scale. 

 Health screenings 
 Flu shots or most other immun-

izations. 
 Keeps food served to the public 

safe. 
 Protects your drinking/ground 

water. 
 Breastfeeding support 
 Diabetes support 
 Nutrition counseling 
 Speakers on health topics for 

small or large groups 
 Broad range of Health Statistics 
 Annual community health as-

sessment update 

Get your flu shot today.   
No appointment necessary. 

Watauga County Health Department Contact Information 

 

 Beth Lovette, Health Director         beth.lovette@apphealth.com  336-264-4995 

 Sandy Shumate , Director of Nursing      sandy.shumate@apphealth.com 336-372-5641 

         Pam Rush, Clinical Supervisor         prush@apphealh.com   828-264-6635 

 Andrew Blethen, EH Supervisor         andrew.blethen@apphealth.com 828-264-4995 

  

Service programs provided by the health department in 

Fiscal Year 2012-13 with programs that are mandated 

by the State in bold type. 

 

Family Planning 
Maternal Health 

Dental 

Tuberculosis 

Komen Grant 

Child Health 

Primary Care/Adult Health 

AIDS/HIV 

Diabetes Self Management 

Immunizations 

Wise Woman 

Ashe School Based Health Center 

Pregnancy Care Management 

Alleghany Community Alternatives Program for Disa-

bled 

   Adults 

Care Coordination for Children 

Youth Tobacco Prevention 

Positive Parenting Program (Triple P) 

Community Health Promotion and Wellness 

Northwest Tobacco Prevention 

Community Transformation Grant 

Communities Putting Prevention to Work Grant 

Water Protection (Septic and Well permitting) 

Food and Lodging (Permitting and Inspections) 

General Administration 

Emergency Preparedness 

Alleghany/Ashe Health Alliance 

Seeds of Change Grant 

School Nurse Initiative 

Northwest Incubator Project 

Women, Infants, Children Nutrition Program (WIC) 
 

Service programs provided by the health department in 

Fiscal Year 2012-13 with programs that are mandated 

by the State in bold type. 

 

Family Planning 
Maternal Health 

Dental 

Tuberculosis 

Komen Grant 

Child Health 

Primary Care/Adult Health 

AIDS/HIV 

Diabetes Self Management 

Immunizations 

Wise Woman 

Ashe School Based Health Center 

Pregnancy Care Management 

Alleghany Community Alternatives Program for Disa-

bled 

   Adults 

Care Coordination for Children 

Youth Tobacco Prevention 

Positive Parenting Program (Triple P) 

Community Health Promotion and Wellness 

Northwest Tobacco Prevention 

Community Transformation Grant 

Communities Putting Prevention to Work Grant 

Water Protection (Septic and Well permitting) 

Food and Lodging (Permitting and Inspections) 

General Administration 

Emergency Preparedness 

Alleghany/Ashe Health Alliance 

Seeds of Change Grant 

School Nurse Initiative 

Northwest Incubator Project 

Women, Infants, Children Nutrition Program (WIC) 
 

Service programs provided by the health department in 

Fiscal Year 2012-13 with programs that are mandated 

by the State in bold type. 

 

Family Planning 

Maternal Health 

Dental 

Tuberculosis 

Komen Grant 

Child Health 

Primary Care/Adult Health 

AIDS/HIV 

Diabetes Self Management 

Immunizations 

Wise Woman 

Ashe School Based Health Center 

Pregnancy Care Management 

Alleghany Community Alternatives Program for Disa-

bled 

   Adults 

Care Coordination for Children 

Youth Tobacco Prevention 

Positive Parenting Program (Triple P) 

Community Health Promotion and Wellness 

Northwest Tobacco Prevention 

Community Transformation Grant 

Communities Putting Prevention to Work Grant 

Water Protection (Septic and Well permitting) 

Food and Lodging (Permitting and Inspections) 

General Administration 

Emergency Preparedness 

Alleghany/Ashe Health Alliance 

Seeds of Change Grant 

School Nurse Initiative 

Northwest Incubator Project 

Women, Infants, Children Nutrition Program 

020414 BCC Meeting

82



January

February

March

April

May

June

July

August

September

October

November

December

Average for Year

*Tracking times exclude any permits that have taken more than 90 days to issue.

Watauga Permit Tracking 2013

10.83333333 17.08333333

4 12

2 11

6 24

7 12

16 21

14 19

15 19

15 19

16 22

14 18

13 18

Average Days                      

until issuance

8 10

Month

Watauga

Average Days                        

until first visit

020414 BCC Meeting

83



January

February

March

April

May

June

July

August

September

October

November

December

Average for Year

*Tracking times exclude any permits that have taken more than 90 days to issue.

9 19

Average Days                        

until first visit

Average Days                      

until issuance

12 16

10

9

10

4

6

18

8

23

15

20

4

4

14

7

13

8

9

15

13

13

Average Days                        

until first visit

Average Days                      

until issuance

1 7

6 8

6

8 10

13 18

5 11

10 12

1 5

8 10

10 16

7 11

8

4 5

2 5

10 29

Ashe Alleghany Watauga District Average
Average Days                        

until first visit

Average Days                      

until issuance

7 11

7 12

15 19

14 19

16 21

14 18

16 22

15 19

Average Days                        

until first visit

Average Days                      

until issuance

10 15

8 10

8 11

11 15

4 12

6 24

2 11

17.08333333 8.666666667 14.16666667

Permit Tracking 2013

7 12

5 13

Month

9.083333333 14.16666667 5.833333333 10.58333333 10.83333333

12 19

8 13

7 16

8 11

13 24

020414 BCC Meeting

84



January $3,700.00 $1,950.00 $1,300.00 $1,375.00 $600.00 $37.50 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $50.00 $9,012.50
February $5,900.00 $1,450.00 $2,600.00 $1,300.00 $300.00 $337.50 $3,500.00 $3,175.00 $0.00 $50.00 $18,612.50
March $7,700.00 $1,650.00 $1,475.00 $1,200.00 $0.00 $37.50 $4,850.00 $1,825.00 $0.00 $104.00 $18,841.50
April $7,900.00 $2,025.00 $3,250.00 $2,000.00 $0.00 $187.50 $400.00 $60.00 $0.00 $75.00 $15,897.50
May $8,800.00 $3,025.00 $2,950.00 $1,300.00 $600.00 $557.93 $950.00 $625.00 $65.00 $79.25 $18,952.18
June $6,600.00 $1,650.00 $4,225.00 $1,600.00 $0.00 $412.50 $300.00 $450.00 $0.00 $75.00 $15,312.50
July $6,000.00 $2,875.00 $5,075.00 $3,100.00 $0.00 $412.50 $0.00 $750.00 $0.00 $0.00 $18,212.50
August $5,000.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,350.00 $0.00 $375.00 $50.00 $1,000.00 $3,365.00 $50.00 $17,190.00
September $5,800.00 $2,675.00 $3,575.00 $2,100.00 $600.00 $300.00 $450.00 $325.00 $685.00 $27.25 $16,537.25
October $10,100.00 $4,050.00 $1,850.00 $2,500.00 $600.00 $150.00 $0.00 $475.00 $360.00 $100.00 $20,185.00
November $3,000.00 $1,775.00 $1,350.00 $900.00 $0.00 $198.95 $0.00 $250.00 $0.00 $25.00 $7,498.95
December $4,200.00 $1,525.00 $975.00 $700.00 $300.00 $150.00 $400.00 $500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $8,750.00

Total $74,700.00 $27,150.00 $31,125.00 $20,425.00 $3,000.00 $3,156.88 $10,900.00 $9,435.00 $4,475.00 $635.50 $185,002.38

Water 

Protection 

Applications

Improvement 

Permit Issued

Fees 

Collected

Authorization 

to Constructs 

Issued

 Fees 

Collected

Operation 

Permit Issued 
(no fees)

Compliance 

Notifications 

Issued

Fees 

Collected

Well Const. 

Issued

Fees 

Collected
Well Grouts 

(no fees)

 Total 

Permits
Total Fees 

January 57 13 $3,700 9 $1,950 5 4 $1,375 2 $1,300 3 36 $8,325

February 59 7 $5,900 7 $1,450 6 10 $1,300 3 $2,600 1 34 $11,250

March 58 15 $7,700 11 $1,650 2 6 $1,200 7 $1,475 4 45 $12,025

April 69 30 $7,900 19 $2,025 18 7 $2,000 9 $3,250 1 84 $15,175

May 74 31 $8,800 26 $3,025 17 12 $1,300 10 $2,950 14 110 $16,075

June 75 14 $6,600 19 $1,650 20 14 $1,600 8 $4,225 7 82 $14,075

July 98 13 $6,000 15 $2,875 8 11 $3,100 20 $5,075 7 74 $17,050

August 72 35 $5,000 24 $2,500 20 13 $2,350 11 $2,500 4 107 $12,350

September 71 13 $5,800 14 $2,675 13 18 $2,100 11 $3,575 16 85 $14,150

October 87 19 $10,100 14 $4,050 20 16 $2,500 6 $1,850 8 83 $18,500

November 34 10 $3,000 4 $1,775 14 6 $900 1 $1,350 5 40 $7,025

December 31 16 $4,200 10 $1,525 10 4 $700 3 $975 5 48 $7,400
Totals 785 216 $74,700 172 $27,150 153 121 $20,425 91 $31,125 75 828 $153,400

Tracking times excluding outliers. Tracking times including outliers.

* “days lapsed” are counted in calendar days not working days, and includes December  2013 **Outlier is considered a permit that has taken more than 90 days to issue.

Average Days*                      

until issuance
Watauga 4 16

Deposit 
Totals

Number of outliers excluded 1

District Turnaround Times      

(Current Month Reported)

Average Days *                        

until first visit

Watauga Water Protection Program 2013

District Turnaround Times      

(Current Month Reported)

Average Days *                        

until first visit

Average Days*                      

until issuance

Tatoo 

Permits

Compliance 

Notification

Water 

Samples
Pool Permits

F & L Plan 

Review

Food Safety 

Courses
Misc.

Watauga Environmental Health Revenue 2013

Month
Improvement                   

Permits

Authorization to 

Construct Permits
Well Permits

District Average 5 13

Watauga 4 12

020414 BCC Meeting

85



January $8,400.00 $2,650.00 $4,550.00 $2,375.00 $600.00 $75.00 $0.00 $250.00 $0.00 $1,051.00 $19,951.00
February $15,075.00 $2,250.00 $7,325.00 $2,925.00 $300.00 $562.50 $4,100.00 $3,175.00 $0.00 $257.00 $35,969.50
March $15,900.00 $3,550.00 $6,350.00 $2,800.00 $0.00 $187.50 $5,050.00 $1,825.00 $0.00 $1,024.43 $36,686.93
April $17,100.00 $4,175.00 $6,845.00 $4,300.00 $0.00 $450.00 $1,000.00 $210.00 $0.00 $154.00 $34,234.00
May $14,225.00 $4,325.00 $8,005.00 $2,800.00 $600.00 $745.43 $1,400.00 $950.00 $65.00 $529.25 $33,644.68
June $11,500.00 $2,650.00 $7,575.00 $2,900.00 $0.00 $750.00 $700.00 $950.00 $0.00 $1,201.00 $28,226.00
July $12,000.00 $3,875.00 $10,050.00 $4,100.00 $0.00 $787.50 $0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 $600.00 $32,412.50
August $13,125.00 $3,500.00 $7,050.00 $3,350.00 $0.00 $975.00 $450.00 $1,000.00 $3,365.00 $784.00 $33,599.00
September $17,200.00 $4,075.00 $8,625.00 $3,900.00 $600.00 $712.50 $450.00 $575.00 $685.00 $1,204.25 $38,026.75
October $15,500.00 $5,500.00 $5,925.00 $4,600.00 $600.00 $938.00 $0.00 $725.00 $360.00 $152.00 $34,300.00
November $7,400.00 $3,400.00 $4,775.00 $2,000.00 $0.00 $536.45 $0.00 $250.00 $0.00 $125.00 $18,486.45
December $9,700.00 $2,625.00 $4,550.00 $1,600.00 $300.00 $300.00 $400.00 $975.00 $0.00 $38.00 $20,488.00

Total $157,125.00 $42,575.00 $81,625.00 $37,650.00 $3,000.00 $7,019.88 $13,550.00 $11,885.00 $4,475.00 $7,119.93 $366,024.81

Water 

Protection 

Applications

Improvement 

Permit Issued

Fees 

Collected

Authorization 

to Constructs 

Issued

 Fees 

Collected

Operation 

Permit Issued 

(no fees)

Compliance 

Notifications 

Issued

Fees 

Collected

Well Const. 

Issued

Fees 

Collected
Well Grouts 

(no fees)

 Total 

Permits 

Issued

Total Fees 

January 101 27 $8,400 12 $2,650 9 7 $2,375 7 $4,550 13 75 $17,975

February 125 17 $15,075 16 $2,250 9 21 $2,925 18 $7,325 4 85 $27,575

March 127 37 $15,900 29 $3,550 8 17 $2,800 18 $6,350 8 117 $28,600

April 145 61 $17,100 32 $4,175 33 22 $4,300 21 $6,845 11 180 $32,420

May 129 57 $14,225 49 $4,325 35 29 $2,800 24 $8,005 21 215 $29,355

June 132 47 $11,500 46 $2,650 42 20 $2,900 29 $7,575 15 199 $24,625

July 153 28 $12,000 30 $3,875 22 21 $4,100 33 $10,050 21 155 $30,025

August 141 63 $13,125 47 $3,500 37 25 $3,350 31 $7,050 25 228 $27,025

September 165 33 $17,200 34 $4,075 34 30 $3,900 22 $8,625 24 177 $33,800

October 154 46 $15,500 37 $5,500 43 35 $4,600 27 $5,925 31 219 $31,525

November 88 26 $7,400 16 $3,400 39 16 $2,000 13 $4,775 24 134 $17,575

December 81 31 $9,700 22 $2,625 24 10 $1,600 10 $4,550 12 109 $18,475
Totals 1541 473 $157,125 370 $42,575 335 253 $37,650 253 $81,625 209 1,893 $318,975

Tracking times excluding outliers. Tracking times including outliers.

* “days lapsed” are counted in calendar days not working days, and includes December  2013 District Average 5 14

Number of outliers excluded 1

District Turnaround Times      

(Current Month Reported)

Average Days **                        

until first visit

Average Days**                      

until issuance

Food Safety 

Courses
Misc.

Deposit 
Totals

Compliance 

Notification

Tatoo 

Permits

Water 

Samples
Pool Permits

F & L Plan 

Review

District Water Protection Program 2013

District Environmental Health Revenue 2013

Authorization to 

Construct Permits
Month

Improvement                   

Permits
Well Permits

13

Average Days*                      

until issuance

District Average

Average Days *                        

until first visit

5

District Turnaround Times      

(Current Month Reported)

020414 BCC Meeting

86



2013 State of Health Report [December 2, 2013]  0 
 

 

  

2013 

Promoting safe & healthy 

living, preventing disease,& 

protecting the environment  

12/2/2013 

State of Health: Watauga County 

020414 BCC Meeting

87



2013 State of Health Report [December 2, 2013]  1 
 

Contents 
Executive Summary……………………………………………………………………………………………………2 

      County Demographics………………………………………………………………………………………….3 

 Unemployment, Median Household Income…………………………………………………………………4 

 Education………………………………………………………………………………………………………...5 

 Poverty & the Uninsured……………………………………………………………………………………….6 

     Leading Causes of Death…………………………………………………………………………………………….7 

 Cancer Incidence………………………………………………………………………………………………..9 

 Cancer Projections……………………………………………………………………………………………..10 

 Pregnancy & Birthweight……………………………………………………………………………………….11 

  Teen Pregnancy……………………………………………………………………………………….12 

  Infants and Children…………………………………………………………………………………..13 

     Leading Risk Factors…………………………………………………………………………………………………14 

     Housing & Food Security……………………………………………………………………………………………..16 

     Emerging Issues……………………………………………………………………………………………………….17 

 The Affordable Care Act…………………………………………………………………………………………17 

 Triple AIM and the Quest for Quality……………………………………………………………………………18 

 Carbon Monoxide Detection Required by NC Law……………………………………………………….…..19 

 Tobacco Innovations or Deceptions……………………………………………………………………..…….20 

   Health Priorities  

 Priority Update: Obesity Prevention…………………………………………………………………………..21 

 Priority Update: Access & Affordability of Healthcare Services……………………………………………22 

 Priority Update: Substance Abuse Prevention………………………………………………………………23 

   Spotlight Updates 

 Triple P: Positive Parenting Program & Innovative Approaches…………………………………………….23 

 Quality Healthcare Services…………………………………………………………………………………….24 

   State and National Perspectives………………………………………………………………………………….....25 

   Contact Information……………………………………………………………………………………………………..26 

 

  

 

 

020414 BCC Meeting

88



2013 State of Health Report [December 2, 2013]  2 
 

Executive Summary 

The state of health in Watauga County is somewhat similar to many other communities across 
North Carolina and the nation. Like so many other communities, the county has faced 
challenges in unemployment, uninsured adults and children, and people living in poverty. 
Although this has been a challenge since the economic troubles that began in 2008, there are 
some points worth celebrating including decreases in the county unemployment rate since 
2011 according to interim figures and a slight increase in median household income, though 
still below that of NC. The county population has continued to grow, with population totals 
coming in at over 52,000 people.  
 
Our health challenges include chronic diseases that have increased across the state and 
nation. Unlike NC, heart disease remains the leading cause of death for the county, with 
cancer deaths following a close second. The good news is that these chronic diseases are 
linked back to three primary behaviors that can help prevent them: tobacco use, poor nutrition, 
and lack of physical activity. These chronic diseases not only contribute to the leading causes 
of death, but also cost us greatly in quality of life and healthcare expenditures. Using evidence-
based strategies while innovating to link them to county context will be ever important in the 
year ahead in continuing to promote more people achieving and maintaining a healthy weight 
and more people choosing not to smoke or having access to services to get help quitting.  
 
2014 brings new opportunities and challenges ahead as many of the major health behaviors 
and those that impact health such as housing, income, and access to healthcare services are 
complex and involve partnerships across sectors to bring improvements. Emerging trends and 
issues to watch this next year include the Affordable Care Act enrollment and continued efforts 
by safety net organizations to serve those who will not be able to afford insurance or qualify for 
Medicaid and food security and services that support it may impact health outcomes if changes 
are made in funding or legislative actions. In addition, monitoring implications of new legislation 
in NC such as the carbon monoxide detection will be important as well as that of prior 
legislation that has supported public health protection such as the smoke free restaurants and 
bars law from 2010. 
 
Finally, 2014 brings an opportunity to take a closer look at local community health needs with 
the community health assessment process. Learn more and get involved by contacting us.   

Sharing the State of Health  

Copies of this report may be found at www.apphealth.com 

The report will be presented to community leaders and groups during scheduled events through January, 
2014. To learn more, follow us on Facebook at Appalachian District Health Department, log on to our 

website, and check your local radio and newspapers.  

To request additional information or to schedule a presentation of this information for your group, call our 
Watauga County office at 828.264.4995 or email at info@apphealth.com.  

 

020414 BCC Meeting

89

http://www.apphealth.com/
mailto:info@apphealth.com


2013 State of Health Report [December 2, 2013]  3 
 

County Demographics  

Watauga County’s population has steadily increased since 2008 to 52,517 (NC DHHS, 2013). 
According to population estimates July, 2013, racial and ethnic demographics of the county are 
primarily White Non-Hispanic with the second largest racial/ethnic group being Hispanic.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Race/Ethnicity by Percent of Total Population  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Race/Ethnicity Percent of 

total 

population 

White Non-Hispanic 93.2% 

Hispanic 3.4% 

African American 

Non-Hispanic 

1.9% 

Other Non-Hispanic 1.4% 

020414 BCC Meeting

90



2013 State of Health Report [December 2, 2013]  4 
 

Community Statistics 

Watauga County unemployment percentage was 8.3% as of June, 2013 (NC Department of 
Commerce, 2013). This data does not reflect a seasonal adjustment.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The table below shows the trend of median household income in Watauga County and NC. As 
of 2011, the Watauga County annual median household income is $39,168 compared to 
$44,028 for NC (US Census Bureau, 2013).  

 

 

 $20,000

 $25,000

 $30,000

 $35,000

 $40,000

 $45,000

 $50,000

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

NC

Watauga

Median Household Income 

020414 BCC Meeting

91



2013 State of Health Report [December 2, 2013]  5 
 

Education  

Education is a critical component for many reasons. Those who graduate from high school 
have a better potential of achieving or maintaining a better health status over time. According 
to the NC Department of Public Instruction, the Watauga County 4 year cohort graduation rate 
is 85.4%, falling slightly below the graduation rate in 2010-2011 at 87.4%, but still above the 
2009-2010 year at 82% (NC DPI, 2013). This data does not include charter school data.  

 

Free and reduced meals are subsidized for families at or below 130% of the Federal Poverty 
Guidelines. Watauga County children participating in the free or reduced meal program has 
increased steadily since the 2007-2008 school year. This does not include charter school data. 
(NC DPI, 2012).  

Year % Children 

participating in Free & 

Reduced Meals 

2007-2008 30.5% 

2008-2009 33.4% 

2009-2010 37.2% 

2010-2011 41.3% 

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

90.00%

100.00%

2007 - 2008 2008 - 2009 2009 - 2010 2010 - 2011 2011 - 2012

Watauga County 4 year Cohort Graduation Rate 

Watauga

020414 BCC Meeting

92



2013 State of Health Report [December 2, 2013]  6 
 

Community needs: Poverty & Uninsured 

Poverty continues to be a critical need in the county. The trend below indicates a steady 
increase in children who are living in poverty in Watauga County, with current percent of 
children in poverty at 23% as of 2011 and up from 15.3% in 2007 (US Census Bureau, 2011). 

 
 

According to the US Census Bureau, 26.3% of people in Watauga County live below the 
federal poverty level. The NC Median Household Income is $46,291 while Watauga County 
Median Household Income is $34,497 (US Census Bureau, 2011).  

The number of individuals without health insurance is detailed in the table below (NCIOM, 
2011). The Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act (ACA) will expand health insurance 
coverage for many Americans in the U.S., but not nearly as many as originally anticipated in 
NC since the NC Legislature did not choose to expand Medicaid coverage. Read more about 
this in the emerging issues section of this report.   

County Age Category 
Data 
Type 

2011 

Watauga 

Children (0-18) 
Number 1,000 
Percent 8.10% 

Adults (19-64) 
Number 8,000 
Percent 21.80% 

Total (0-64) Number 9,000 

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Watauga County Children in 
Poverty 

Watauga

020414 BCC Meeting

93



2013 State of Health Report [December 2, 2013]  7 
 

 

Health statistics: Causes of death 

This report includes a brief overview of health statistics for the county. Every year Appalachian 
District Health Department provides relevant updates to health statistics in this report. Every 
three years, the report is a comprehensive community health needs assessment report. The 
2011 community health assessment is available at www.apphealth.com. In December, 2014, 
the community health assessment report will be published.  

 

Leading causes of death in Watauga County with NC rates 

2008-2012 Age adjusted death rates per 100,000 (NC DHHS, 2013) 

Cause  Watauga County NC 

Heart disease 156.8 174.4 

Cancer 150.0 175.9 

Chronic lower respiratory 
disease 

44.7 46.6 

Unintentional Non-motor 
vehicle injuries 

39.1 29.4 

Alzheimer’s disease 29.8 29.3 

Cerebrovascular disease 26.3 45.1 

Diabetes 17.1 21.8 

Suicide 15.4 12.2 

Pneumonia & Influenza 11.6 18 

Chronic liver disease & 
Cirrhosis 

9 9.3 

Motor-Vehicle Injuries 9 14.3 

 

The table above reflects the age-adjusted death rates in Watauga County with NC rates noted 
as well from the 2014 Databook (NC DHHS, 2013). This data reflects the current national and 
statewide trend of leading causes of death from chronic diseases.  

020414 BCC Meeting

94

http://www.apphealth.com/


2013 State of Health Report [December 2, 2013]  8 
 

Health statistics: Death rates 

The leading causes of death for Watauga County are chronic diseases. Though heart disease 
has a higher death rate at 156/100,000, cancer is only slightly below at 150/100,000. Following 
these, chronic lower respiratory disease follows. These three causes alone represent 55% of 
the total number of deaths in Watauga County. We draw attention to the areas where the 
county rate (noted in blue) is either better or worse than the state rate (noted in red). In 
categories where the actual number of deaths is too small to be a reliable rate, no blue is 
shown. Watauga County has a higher rate of unintentional non-motor vehicle injuries than NC, 
as well a higher rate of deaths by suicide when compared to NC. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

020414 BCC Meeting

95



2013 State of Health Report [December 2, 2013]  9 
 

Health statistics: Cancer Incidence 

Cancer is the second leading cause of death in Watauga County, though only slightly less than 
heart disease. This graph demonstrates the types of cancer by incidence rate per 100,000 for 
the county and NC. Watauga County total cancer incidence rate of 503.8 is slightly above the 
NC rate of 498.1, and Watauga rates higher in female breast cancer at 164.4 compared to 
155.9 in NC (NC DHHS, 2013).  

  
 

 

 

0.0 200.0 400.0 600.0 800.0 1000.0

Rate

Rate

Rate

Rate

Rate

C
O

LO
N

/R
EC

TA
L

LU
N

G
/B

R
O

N
C

H
U

S
FE

M
A

LE
 B

R
EA

ST
P

R
O

ST
A

TE
A

LL
 C

A
N

C
ER

S

NORTH CAROLINA

Watauga

2006-2010 Age-Adjusted Cancer Incidence Rates per 100,000 

020414 BCC Meeting

96



2013 State of Health Report [December 2, 2013]  10 
 

Health statistics: Cancer projections 

The NC Central Cancer Registry reports that the percent of deaths due to cancer in Watauga 
County was above that in NC as shown in Table 1 below (NC DHHS, 2013). Note that this data 
is for 2011 which was available in June, while the previous page indicates the most recent data 
from 2012. Currently, cancer is the leading cause of death in NC and the second leading 
cause of death in Watauga County and the United States.  

 
 

Cancer is categorized primarily into the following categories. Figure 1 represents the percent of 
deaths by cancer type using 2011 data (NC DHHS, 2013). Table 2 shows the projected cases 
of cancer for 2013 by type (NC DHHS, 2013). Early detection is important for some cancers 
like female breast cancer, while others often go undetected until later stages (NC DHHS, 
2013).This calls for more attention to prevention of cancer through individual lifestyle decisions 
and community supports for tobacco prevention and cessation, healthy eating, and physical 
activity while continuing to support early detection programs.  

 

 

020414 BCC Meeting

97



2013 State of Health Report [December 2, 2013]  11 
 

Health statistics: Pregnancy & Birthweight 

Overall, Watauga County had lower percentages of births that were premature and low 
birthweight than in comparison to the state. In 2012, most pregnant women giving birth received 
early prenatal care, a critical factor that supports positive birth outcomes with 83.6% receiving care 
during the first trimester, 12.6% receiving care during the second trimester, and 2.3 % receiving care at 
third trimester, and 0.3% receiving no prenatal care (NC State Center for Health Statistics, 2013).  

In 2012, there were a total of 348 births in 
Watauga County and of those, 307 born were 
White Non-Hispanic, 7 African American Non-
Hispanic, 1 Other Non-Hispanic, and 33 Hispanic 
(NC State Center for Health Statistics, 2013). 

89.4% of births in Watauga County in 2012 were 
considered full term, or 37+ weeks of gestation 
while 10.6% of births were pre-term births. Babies 
born too early may be born with a low birthweight 
and have other health problems or be at greater 
risks for health problems. Early and consistent 
prenatal care is an important step in preventing 
premature births, low birthweight, and risk of infant 
death. 

 

According to the NC State 
Center for Health Statistics, from 
2008-2012, Watauga County 
babies born with low birthweight 
was 5.8% while those with very 
low birthweight was 0.9% 
compared to all NC births during 
the same time period of 9% low 
birthweight and 1.8% very low 
birthweight. 

 

 

 

 

 

2012 Watauga County %  

Pre-Term and Full Term Births 

020414 BCC Meeting

98



2013 State of Health Report [December 2, 2013]  12 
 

Health statistics: Teen Pregnancy 

Watauga County teen pregnancy rates remain below that of NC. According to the NC State 
Center for Health Statistics, the 2008-2012 Teen Pregnancy Rates per 1,000 population 
among 15-17 year olds for Watauga County is 17.9 per 1,000 compared to a rate of 26 per 
1,000 in NC for the same time period.  

 

According to the Adolescent Pregnancy Prevention Campaign of NC, teen pregnancy rates 
have declined over 62% since its peak in 1990 and it declined 10% between 2011 and 2012. 
The declines are primarily attributed to increased contraceptive use among teens and 
decrease in repeat pregnancies among teen parents (Adolescent Pregnancy Prevention 
Campaign of NC, 2013).  

Data below is provided by the Adolescent Pregnancy Prevention Campaign of NC, 2013 and 
features a snapshot from 2012. Rates that are very low are not considered stable and are not 
listed in this table. Learn more about APPCNC at www.appcnc.org/data/map/watauga  

2012 Teen Pregnancies  

Number of pregnancies among 15-19 year old girls: 27 

Teen pregnancy rate per 1,000 15-19 year old girls: 8.8 

Teen pregnancy rates by race/ethnicity 
African American: * 

Hispanic: * 

White: 7.7 
 

Teen pregnancy rates by age 
15-17 year olds: * 

18-19 year olds: 8.2 
 

Number of pregnancies among 15-17 year old girls: 7 

Number of pregnancies among 18-19 year old girls: 20 

Percent of Repeat Pregnancies: 25.9% 

Teen birth rate per 1,000 15-19 year old girls: 7.8 

NC County Ranking (out of 100 counties): 85 

Change since 2011: -34.8% 

*Rates based on small numbers (<20 pregnancies) are unstable and not provided. 

Source: North Carolina State Center for Health Statistics. 

Updated October 2013.  

020414 BCC Meeting

99

http://www.appcnc.org/data/map/watauga


2013 State of Health Report [December 2, 2013]  13 
 

Health statistics: Infants & Children 

Watauga County infant mortality remains lower than NC based on a review of data from 2008-
2012 of babies dying 28 days to 1 year post-birth (NC State Center for Health Statistics, 2013). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The table above details infant and child deaths for two time periods: 2008-2012 and 2012 for 
county and NC residents (NC State Center for Health Statistics, 2013) by age and cause of 
death. No deaths were attributed to SIDS (Sudden Infant Death Syndrome) while illness, 
drowning, birth defects, and suicide were causes of the 12 deaths since 2008.  

020414 BCC Meeting

100



2013 State of Health Report [December 2, 2013]  14 
 

Health statistics: Leading Risk Factors 

Chronic diseases such as heart disease, cancer, stroke, and diabetes have become the 
leading causes of death and disability in the United States. Our area is similar in the majority of 
death and much of healthcare costs can be linked back to chronic disease.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Three behaviors: poor nutrition, lack of physical activity, and tobacco use contribute to 4 major 
chronic diseases that cause over 50 % of deaths worldwide. These behaviors not only rob us 

years of life, but life in our years costing us quality of life and major expense in healthcare. 

 

Nutrition 

•Make healthy food available for all 
•Support policies and practices that 

provide access to healthier foods 
• Educate and support individuals and 

families in learning and practicing 
healthy eating behavior 
 

Physical Activity 

•Create safe places to be active 
•Encourage active transportation 
•Increase active living opportunities 

for adults and youth 

Tobacco  

•Support youth tobacco prevention 
efforts 

•Promote and enforce policies and 
laws that protect the public from 
harmful secondhand smoke 

•Provide support to those who want 
to quit 

•Monitor and educate the public 
about emerging tobacco products  

020414 BCC Meeting

101



2013 State of Health Report [December 2, 2013]  15 
 

Leading Risk Factors: Tobacco Use 

Tobacco use remains the single leading cause of preventable death and disability in the United 
States (CDC, 2013). In 2011, the current percentage of adults who smoked was 21.8%, 
ranking 29th among the states (CDC, 2013). In addition, 5.2% of adults reported use of 
smokeless tobacco (snuff, dip, chewing) in 2011 ranking 36th among the states (CDC, 2013). 

 

QuitNow NC is a resource that provides free counseling to individuals who want to quit using 
tobacco. It is promoted in various methods through partnerships with local healthcare providers 
who can refer patients who are interested that can receive a call from a trained quit-coach. 
During 2009-2010 year, 55% of smokers in NC made an attempt to quit (CDC, 2012).  

 

In NC, the percent of youth grades 9-12 engaging in smoking was 17.7% in 2011 putting NC at 
a rank of 26 among other states in the US. Smokeless tobacco use was 11% setting a rank of 
28th among other states (CDC, 2013).   

 

One of the most powerful tools to encourage adults and youth to quit smoking or avoid starting 
is to raise the amount of cigarette excise tax. As of June 30, 2012, the NC rate of 0.45/pack of 
cigarettes puts NC ranking 45th among the states with the national median being $1.339/pack 
(CDC, 2013). 

 

 
 

 

The NC 

Smokefree 

Restaurants and 

Bars Law protects 

many from 

secondhand 

smoke 

020414 BCC Meeting

102



2013 State of Health Report [December 2, 2013]  16 
 

Housing & Food Security 

There are additional factors that influence health behavior and health status including housing 
and food security. These two needs are critical to positive health outcomes. 

 

According to the US Department of Housing and Urban Development, on a single night in 
2012, there were 633,782 people homeless people in the United States, and of those 394,379 
were homeless as individuals while 239,403 were homeless in families (US Department of 
Housing and Urban Development, 2012).  

 

In NC, the total homelessness increased by 5% from January 2011 to January 2012 while 
nationwide total homelessness decreased by 0.4%. By reviewing the report, The State of 
Homelessness in America 2013, the report indicates most of the increase in NC to be among 
family households, persons in families, and homeless veterans.  

 

The Hospitality House of Boone is a regional facility offering emergency, transitional, and 
permanent housing assistance for individuals and families. In addition, three meals a day and 
laundry facilities are also available for individuals and families beyond those offered shelter. 
The bread of life program also offers a food box distribution program, and the WeCAN program 
offers heating assistance. Learn more about the Hospitality House at 
www.hospitalityhouseofboone.org  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Food Insecurity & Services in Watauga County 

 770 Women and young children were being served by the WIC program as of July, 2013 

 3,999 individuals were participating in the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP) 
 41.3% of Watauga County Schools students participate in the Free & Reduced Meal program 

 
 
It is estimated that 9,290 individuals are living in food insecure households as of 2011 
and the rate of food insecurity is 18.4% 
 
Did you know? Some research over time has shown that obesity and food insecurity co-exist.  
Healthy, balanced nutrition may be more difficult for those who are in food insecure 
households. Food insecurity is not only about hunger, but also obesity and chronic disease 
prevention. 

 

 

 

 

 

020414 BCC Meeting

103

http://www.hospitalityhouseofboone.org/


2013 State of Health Report [December 2, 2013]  17 
 

Emerging Issues: The Affordable Care Act 

In March, 2010, President Obama signed the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act into 
law. This legislation proposes increased access to healthcare for many Americans who were 
previously denied coverage due to preexisting conditions while offering opportunity for those 
who may not have an individual option offered by their employer to purchase coverage. The 
law includes many provisions, including requirements for essential preventive services that 
most plans will cover beginning in 2014. These include screenings for blood pressure, 
cholesterol, diabetes, depression, HIV, alcohol, obesity, syphilis, tobacco and diet along with 
support among other services such as immunizations (US DHHS, 2013).  

 

In North Carolina, individuals who are interested in participating in the health insurance 
marketplace must access information through the federal website, www.healthcare.gov but 
local assistance is available in the community. County DSS offices and health departments 
assist or provide referrals to individuals to access support in navigating sign up.  

 
In Watauga County, individuals may access one-on-one support and information about the 
healthcare insurance marketplace at High Country Community Health and at other community 
locations.  

 

This is an emerging issue that will remain among the major public health trends for monitoring 
in the future.  

 

The NC Institute of Medicine estimates nearly 500,000 individuals in NC will remain uninsured 
without Medicaid expansion in the state, with most being working adults under the age of 65 
years. Read more about the potential implications for expanding health coverage in NC in the 
NC Institute of Medicine report located at http://www.nciom.org/publications/?impactaca.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

020414 BCC Meeting

104

http://www.healthcare.gov/
http://www.nciom.org/publications/?impactaca


2013 State of Health Report [December 2, 2013]  18 
 

Emerging Issues: Triple AIM Healthcare 

Triple AIM Healthcare initiatives as well as other quality improvement movements are giving rise to many 
system-level changes that impact public health and those providing social and healthcare services in the 
community.  These include information technology systems in health and human service provider locations such 
as NC Tracks, NC FAST, and others. In the interim, there have been challenges in adapting to new systems of 
payment and registration. Long term, these systems will create opportunities to make improvements at system 
levels based on data to better serve individuals and communities. 

Safety net providers are working together to respond to the ever changing landscape of healthcare. The statewide 
Healthnet program is currently undergoing new system changes to emphasize data driven payment systems. This 
program operates across the Appalachian District and is administered by the Appalachian District Health 
Department in Alleghany and Ashe County with community provider partners. This program works to link 
individuals who are uninsured to needed healthcare services. Through this collaboration, a nurse care manager 
with Access Care of the Blue Ridge provides health coaching, motivational interviewing, and resource linking for 
individuals. This helps increase the quality of care while saving healthcare costs.  

In addition, more emphasis is being placed on making community health promotion connections to support 
healthcare outcomes at the individual and population level.  

  

Goals of Triple Aim Healthcare 

 Improved Quality improvement & patient satisfaction 
 Improved population health 
 Reduced healthcare costs 

Source: Institute for Healthcare Improvement (2013).  www.ihi.org/initiatives/TripleAim/pages/default.htm  

  

 

 

 

Appalachian District Health Department has developed and implemented Triple 
Aim through numerous quality improvement projects. In addition, new electronic 
health systems have been phased in to provide data to improve care for patients 
and the community.  

 

 

 

 

 

020414 BCC Meeting

105



2013 State of Health Report [December 2, 2013]  19 
 

Emerging Issues 

CARBON MONOXIDE TESTING REQUIRED IN NEW NC LEGISLATION  

In 2013, the NC General Assembly passed new legislation, Session Law 2013-413 (formerly 
House Bill 74) requiring lodging establishments that provide lodging for pay to the public to 
install carbon monoxide detectors meeting ANSI/UL 2034 or ANSI/UL 2075 in every enclosed 
space having a fossil fuel burning heater, appliance, or fireplace and in any enclosed space, 
including a sleeping room, that shares a common wall, floor, or ceiling with an enclosed space 
having a fossil fuel burning heater, appliance, or fireplace by October 1, 2013. The law allows 
use of either battery-operated or electric carbon monoxide detectors to meet the initial 
deadline, but requires that CO detectors must receive primary power from the building’s 
electrical wiring and have battery back-up power by October 1, 2014.  

This legislation presents a new role for Environmental Health Specialists in NC public health as 
they are now conducting carbon monoxide detector compliance verification along with routine 
lodging facility inspections. These inspections include ensuring that installed carbon monoxide 
detectors meet specifications per SL 2013-413. Facilities that have rooms that are not in 
compliance with this law must be provided written notification along with an Intent to Suspend 
Permit as of October 1, 2013. Continued efforts in this new law will be further defining an 
enclosed space with the Building Code Council and may be revised in 2014.  

Environmental Health Specialists are Registered Sanitarians in NC and they help assure the 
public’s health in safe, healthy food in restaurants, sanitary lodging and child care facilities in 
addition to wastewater/septic, tattooing, and pool permitting.   

Source: NC DHHS, 2013. Position statement: Carbon Monoxide Detectors Required in 
Lodging Establishments. 25 September, 2013 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Photo courtesy of freedigitalphotos.com 

020414 BCC Meeting

106



2013 State of Health Report [December 2, 2013]  20 
 

Tobacco Innovations or Deceptions? 

Tobacco has adapted to develop, market, and promote new methods for tobacco use in the 
United States, with some forms being targeted to youth and young adults.  

Hookahs are water pipes used to smoke specially flavored tobacco and it is often practiced in 
a group setting, passing the water pipe from person to person (CDC, 2013). According to the 
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, hookah is at least as toxic as cigarettes as it is 
still a nicotine delivery device. Also, a typical hookah smoking cession lasts about 1 hour and 
involved a typical 200 puffs, while a cigarette involves about 20 puffs comparing the amount of 
smoking inhaled from hookah being about 90,000 mL compared to 500-600 mL in a cigarette. 
Hookah has been associated with lung cancer, respiratory illness, low birth weight, and 
periodontal disease (CDC, 2013). 

Similar to hookah, electronic cigarettes, or e-cigs, are an emerging trending product often 
marketed as a healthier alternative but risks are not fully known. Harmful chemicals and 
nicotine are also part of this harmful product.  

 

Coming Soon 

In 1964, the US Surgeon General released a landmark report linking cigarette smoking with 
heart disease and cancer for the first time. In January, 2014, the US Surgeon General will 
provide a 50 year Anniversary report. Tobacco use is linked to 440,000 deaths every year in 
the United States (CDC, 2013).  

 

 

The Appalachian District Health Department supports tobacco prevention through promotion of 
Quitline NC (1.800.QUITNOW) while also providing community services in tobacco prevention 
and cessation.  

 

The Community Transformation Grant Project currently is partnering with the Northwest 
Regional Housing Authority to implement a smokefree multi-unit housing policy from 2013-
2014. This regional authority received feedback from tenants with the majority supporting 
smoke free indoor housing. Learn more about this initiative at www.nwtransformation.org  

 

Learn more about tobacco prevention services available at http://www.apphealth.com/health-
promotion/northwest-tobacco-prevention-coalition/. 

 

020414 BCC Meeting

107

http://www.nwtransformation.org/
http://www.apphealth.com/health-promotion/northwest-tobacco-prevention-coalition/
http://www.apphealth.com/health-promotion/northwest-tobacco-prevention-coalition/


2013 State of Health Report [December 2, 2013]  21 
 

Priority: Obesity Prevention 

More than a third, 35.7%, of US adults are overweight or obese 
(CDC, 2012). Obesity is linked to heart disease, stroke, diabetes, 
and cancer and an estimated $147 billion in annual healthcare 
costs in the US, or an additional $1,429 in medical costs in 
comparison to those of normal weight (CDC, 2013). 

Adult Obesity 62.7% (Western NC 

BRFSS, NCSCHS, 2012) compared to 65.8% in NC 

Children Overweight 15.9% 
Obese 15.6% 
This data is from child clinics and WIC program in Watauga County and therefore 
represents some limitations in sample size. However, NC reports 14.9% overweight and 
14.5% obese in statewide results (NC NPASS, 2012).  
 
It is estimated that 1 in 7 low income preschool children in the United States is overweight or obese. There 
has been much work over the past decade in supporting obesity prevention early in life in the nation, NC, 
and in the Appalachian District with many community partners like schools, chil dcare centers, community 
organizations, and families. For the first time in history, the most recent data of childhood obesity indicated 
a decrease in obesity prevalence among low income preschool aged children from 15.21% to 14.94% and 
extreme obesity from 2.22% to 2.07% (CDC, 2013). Though these are only slight decreases, they indicate a 
trend in making change.  

In 2013, the Community Transformation Grant Project has offered opportunity to partner within 
a 10 county region (Alleghany, Ashe, Watauga, Wilkes, Surry, Stokes, Forsyth, Davie, 
Davidson, and Yadkin) to support healthy eating, active living, tobacco free living, and quality 
improvement initiatives to support clinicians serving clients in tobacco cessation. During 2013, 
activities included: 

 Launch of the www.nwtransformation.org website and public outreach campaigns promoting local farmers 
markets and smoke free homes 

 Creation of the Health by Design regional active living strategic plan highlighting and supporting active 
living comprehensive plans that support health in all 10 counties 

 Initiation of a comprehensive corner store assessment to measure access to healthy foods including fruits 
and vegetables 

 Mini-grants to healthy food producers in their efforts to make healthier foods available in the Appalachian 
District  

 Collaboration with the Northwest Regional Housing Authority in their efforts to protect tenants from 
harmful secondhand smoke while indoors 

020414 BCC Meeting

108

http://www.nwtransformation.org/


2013 State of Health Report [December 2, 2013]  22 
 

Priority: Access & Affordability of 
Healthcare Services 

Currently, 21.8% of Watauga County adults are uninsured which is places risk for individuals 
and public health through lack of access to or affordability of healthcare services. In 2013, a 
new healthcare service became available for adults through a special grant for a federally 
qualified health center called High Country Community Health. Serving Watauga and Avery 
Counties, this clinic offers care regardless of the ability to pay. Learn more about High Country 
Community Health at www.highcountrycommunityhealth.org.  

 

 

 

 

 

Priority: Substance Abuse Prevention 

Watauga Substance Abuse Prevention is a collaborative effort led by Western Youth Network, 
a local non-profit organization, a community recipient of the national Drug Free Communities 
Grant. The Watauga Substance Abuse Prevention (WSAP) Collaborative partners with the 
community to prevent and reduce the misuse of alcohol, marijuana, and prescription 
medication by youth through awareness, advocacy, and action. Activities in 2013 included the 
Good Neighbor Campaign, training for servers and establishments on safe serving, substance 
free tailgating activities, and more. In 2014, WSAP will help sponsor the Youth Risk Behavior 
Survey at Watauga High School. Learn more and get involved at www.wsap.org.  

 

Be a good neighbor at home, Parents and Guardians pledge to: 

 Make a commitment to talk about underage drinking and secure alcohol in your home 
 Set guidelines. Meet your kids’ friends and their parents. Communicate when your kids 

are spending time at their home. 
 Be present at parties and discourage underage alcohol and drug use in your home. 

Encourage drug and alcohol free events and activities. 

 

 

020414 BCC Meeting

109

http://www.highcountrycommunityhealth.org/
http://www.wsap.org/


2013 State of Health Report [December 2, 2013]  23 
 

Focus Spotlight: Positive Parenting & 
Innovative Approaches 

Triple P stands for Positive Parenting Program. The Appalachian District is part of the NC 
Collaborative for Triple P Positive Parenting Program. Triple P is an evidence-based program 
aimed at providing tips and tools for practitioners to provide resources to parents to design 
parenting solutions to stay positive during common parenting challenges. Triple P trained 60 
practitioners in 2013 to deliver Triple P in the community. These range from community 
volunteers, healthcare providers, to social workers and licensed professional counselors. 
These practitioners are delivering Triple P to parents across the Appalachian District counties 
for free or reduced costs. The Watauga County Children’s Council is a primary partner in the 
project. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Innovative Approaches is part of a state collaborative seeking to provide system level change 
to support children and families with special healthcare needs in Watauga County. In 2013, a 
community collaborative with a diverse group of committed parents, professionals, and 
organizational leaders have been working together to better understand challenges facing 
families in the county. Through a parent driven process, the collaborative will work toward 
system changes in 2014. Learn more about Innovative Approaches by contacting Stephanie 
Craven Bunch, Innovative Approaches Coordinator, at the Watauga County office of 
Appalachian District Health Department.  

 

 

 

 

 

020414 BCC Meeting

110



2013 State of Health Report [December 2, 2013]  24 
 

Focus Spotlight: Quality Healthcare 

Appalachian District Health Department offers quality clinical services to serve the community 
and accepts most insurance plans. The Watauga County healthcare team includes pediatric 
dentistry and a variety of other clinical services from sick visits, women’s healthcare, and many 
other services.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

020414 BCC Meeting

111



2013 State of Health Report [December 2, 2013]  25 
 

State and National Perspectives 

Local public health efforts are linked up to state and national efforts working toward the same 
goals over time. Appalachian District Health Department builds upon Healthy People 2020 
national strategies and Healthy NC 2020 for statewide strategies. Learn more about Healthy 
NC 2020 http://publichealth.nc.gov/hnc2020/foesummary.htm 

 

The NC smokefree restaurants and bars law has supported positive health outcomes with 
strong public support. Appalachian District Health Department Environmental Health staff 
monitors compliance in partnership with the NC Division of Public Health. 

020414 BCC Meeting

112

http://publichealth.nc.gov/hnc2020/foesummary.htm


2013 State of Health Report [December 2, 2013]  26 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Promoting safe & healthy living, preventing disease, & protecting the environment  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

        

 

 

 

 

 

Alleghany County Health Department 

157 Health Services Road 
Sparta, NC 28675 

(336) 372-5641 Clinic 
(336) 372-5644 WIC  

(336) 372-8813 Finance Office 
1-866-257-5542 Dental Clinic 

www.apphealth.com  
 
  

Ashe County Health Department 

413 McConnell Street 
Jefferson, NC 28694 
(336) 246-9449 Clinic 
(336) 246-2013 WIC 

(336) 246-3356 Environmental Health Office 
1-866-257-5542 Dental Clinic 

www.apphealth.com  
  

Watauga County Health Department 
126 Poplar Grove Connector 

Boone, NC 28607 
(828) 264-6635 Clinic 
(828) 264-6641 WIC 

(828) 264-4995 District Office/Environmental Health 
1-866-257-5542 Dental Clinic 

www.apphealth.com  
 

020414 BCC Meeting

113

http://www.apphealth.com/
http://www.apphealth.com/
http://www.apphealth.com/


Blank Page 
 
 

020414 BCC Meeting

114



 
AGENDA ITEM 7: 

PROPOSED APPOINTMENT OF HOME AND COMMUNITY CARE BLOCK GRANT 
(H&CCBG) ADVISORY COMMITTEE AND LEAD AGENCY  

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Each year the Board is required to appoint a lead agency and advisory committee to make 
recommendations on how to best expend the County’s allocation from the Home and 
Community Care Block Grant (H&CCBG) funds.  These funds were previously established by 
the Older American’s Act and are administered by the North Carolina Division of Aging.   
 
Board action is requested to approve the Watauga County Project on Aging as the Lead Agency.  
In that this is the first reading, you may delay action or waive your policy and appoint the 
members to the Advisory Board as presented.   
 
Direction from the Board is requested. 
 
 
 
 
  

020414 BCC Meeting

115



       Watauga County Project on Aging 
                  132 Poplar Grove Connector, Suite A ●  Boone, North Carolina 28607 
                                               Website:  www.wataugacounty.org/aging    angie.boitnotte@watgov.org 

        Telephone 828-265-8090   Fax 828-264-2060   TTY 1-800-735-2962     Voice 1-800-735-8262 or 711 
                                          

 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 

TO: Deron Geouque, County Manager 
 

FROM: Angie Boitnotte, Director 
 

DATE: January 27, 2014 
 

SUBJ: Request for Board of Commissioners’ Consideration: Appointment of the Home and  
Community Care Block Grant Advisory Committee and Lead Agency 

 
 

Please accept the attached list as nominations for the Home and Community Care Block Grant 
Advisory Committee for FY 2015.  I also recommend that the Watauga County Project on 
Aging be appointed as the Lead Agency. 

 
 

020414 BCC Meeting

116



HOME AND COMMUNITY CARE BLOCK GRANT 
ADVISORY COMMITTEE FY 2015 

 
 

LEAD AGENCY 
      
Angie Boitnotte, Director     Watauga County Project on Aging  
132 Poplar Grove Connector, Suite A   265-8090 
Boone, NC  28607      angie.boitnotte@watgov.org 
 
    

ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
 
NAME        REPRESENTING 
 
Billy Kennedy                             Watauga County Board of Commissioners 
1100 Rock Springs Rd.     297-4123 
Vilas, NC  28692      billy.kennedy@watgov.org 
 
Director        High Country Council of Governments 
Area Agency on Aging     265-5434 ext. 122 
468 New Market Blvd.      
Boone, NC  28607 
 
Betsy Richards, Adult Services Supervisor   Watauga County Department of Social Services 
132 Poplar Grove Connector, Suite C    265-8100 
Boone, NC  28607      betsy.richards@watgov.org 
 
Mike Birkmire, MS, CRC, Unit Manager   Independent Living 
245 Winklers Creek Rd., Suite A    265-5396 
Boone, NC 28607      mike.birkmire@dhhs.nc.gov 
 
Linda Bretz, RN      Gentiva Home Health 
PO Box 2528       266-1166 
Boone, NC  28607      lindabretz@gentiva.com 
 
Murray Hawkinson, Watauga Clinical Site Director  Daymark Recovery Services 
132 Poplar Grove Connector, Suite B    264-8759 
Boone, NC  28607      mhawkinson@daymarkrecovery.org 
 
Margie Mansure, Family & Consumer Ed. Agent  Cooperative Extension 
971 West King St.       264-3061 
Boone, NC  28607      margie_mansure@ncsu.edu 
 
Christy Pruess, Northern Region Director   Smoky Mountain Center 
895 State Farm Rd., Suite 404    263-5637 
Boone, NC  28607      prueschr@smokymountaincenter.com 
 
Pam Rush, Public Health Nurse    Appalachian District Health Department 
126 Poplar Grove Connector     264-6635 
Boone, NC  28607      prush@apphealth.com  
 

020414 BCC Meeting

117



Billy Hoilman, Account Executive    Hospice 
136 Furman Road, Suite 2     406-4932 
Boone, NC  28607      bhoilman@msa-corp.com 
         
Pat Coley       Senior Citizen (STHL Delegate) 
P. O. Box 307       295-3556 
Blowing Rock, NC  28605     patcoley@bellsouth.net 
 
Kat Danner       Senior Citizen 
280 Foster Circle      264-7985 or 773-0682 
Boone, NC  28607      dannerk@charter.net 
 
Sherry Harmon      Senior Citizen 
196 Phillips Branch Rd.     297-3828 
Vilas, NC  28692      sherry.harmon@gmail.com     
 
Gail Hawkinson      Senior Citizen 
714 Queen St.       264-1774 
Boone, NC  28607      hawkmg@boone.net 
 
Bob Parker       Senior Citizen 
P. O. Box 925       265-6390 
Blowing Rock, NC  28605     bobcat.p@hotmail.com 
 
Dr. Ed Rosenberg      Senior Citizen (STHL Alternate) 
220 Sorrento Forest Dr.     262-6146 (w) 
Blowing Rock, NC  28605     RosenbergE@appstate.edu 
 
Betty Wyse       Senior Citizen 
314 Meadowview Dr., Apt. 401    264-5482 
Boone, NC  28607 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Updated:  01/17/14 

020414 BCC Meeting

118



AGENDA ITEM 8: 

TAX MATTERS  
A. Monthly Collections Report 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Larry Warren, Tax Administrator, will present the Monthly Collections Report and be 
available for questions and discussion. 
 
The report is for information only; therefore, no action is required. 
 
  

020414 BCC Meeting

119



Blank Page 
 
 

020414 BCC Meeting

120



AGENDA ITEM 8: 

TAX MATTERS  
B. Refunds and Releases 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Warren will present the Refunds and Releases Report. 
 
Board action is required to accept the Refunds and Releases Report. 
 
  

020414 BCC Meeting

121



Blank Page 
 
 

020414 BCC Meeting

122



AGENDA ITEM 9: 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE FOLLOWING ORDINANCES AS RECOMMENDED 
BY THE WATAUGA COUNTY PLANNING BOARD: 

A. Ordinance to Regulate High Impact Land Uses 
B. Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance 
C. Ordinance to Regulate Junkyards and Automotive Graveyards 
D. Ordinance to Regulate Wind Energy Systems 
E. Ordinance to Govern Structures on Land Adjacent to National Park Service Land 
F. Ordinance to Govern Subdivisions & Multi-Unit Structures 
G. Ordinance to Regulate Signs 
H. Height of Structures Ordinance 
I. Manufactured Home Parks Ordinance 
 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
In September the Board amended the County ordinances adopted under zoning authority to 
comply with Session Law 2013-126 of the North Carolina General Assembly.  Mr. Furman was 
made aware through the North Carolina School of Government that one section of the new law 
regarding variances also applies to other development ordinances that were adopted under 
general ordinance making authority.  Subsequently, Mr. Furman presented the proposed 
amendments to the County Planning Board of the nine (9) ordinances (listed above) in which the 
Planning Board recommended approval to the Board of Commissioners with minor changes. 
 
Mr. Furman has included the proposed amendments along with a North Carolina School of 
Government bulletin detailing the issue at hand.  Mr. Furman has instructed that the Board 
ignore the bottom half of page 5 of the bulletin as it is not applicable.  According to Mr. Furman 
the proposed amendments are mostly wording changes to standardize the ordinances and to bring 
them in compliance with state statutes.  A key point to note is that the Board of Commissioners 
will no longer hear variance requests and the Board of Adjustments would be the primary 
variance granting Board.  The recommendation is based on the fact that the Board of Adjustment 
is trained for such cases and operates in a quasi-judicial manner.  The Planning Board would 
continue to hear variances related to the subdivision regulations and the manufactured home park 
ordinances as the Board currently reviews plans submitted for these ordinances.  The Board of 
Commissioners would hear appeals of the Planning Board decisions under the subdivision 
regulations and the manufactured home park ordinances as well as the wind energy ordinance.   
 
Mr. Furman will present the proposed amendments and request the Board set a public hearing for 
the February 18, 2014 meeting. 
 
Board action is requested.   
  

020414 BCC Meeting

123



1 | P a g e  
 

STAFF REPORT 

VARIOUS ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENTS  
Necessitated by S.L. 2013-126 “An Act to Clarify and Modernize 

Statutes Regarding Zoning Boards of Adjustment” 
__________________________________________________________________________________ 
TO:  County Planning Board 
  Board of County Commissioners 
FROM: Planning & Inspections Department Staff 
DATE:  January 27, 2014 
RE:  Legislation affecting local ordinances that involve the Board of Adjustment and other  
  Boards making quasi-judicial decisions. 
 
SYNOPSIS: 
In September 2013, staff presented ordinance amendments necessitated by S.L. 2013-126, the 
modernization of zoning board of adjustment statutes. We recently learned that the impact of this 
legislation goes beyond ordinances and procedures that involve the board of adjustment. This legislation 
applies to actions taken by any board acting in a quasi-judicial capacity and applies to any ordinance 
dealing with land use or development, even those adopted under general ordinance making authority 
(non-zoning ordinances).   
 
SUMMARY: 
Because Watauga County has adopted several non-zoning ordinances that provide for administrative 
reviews of staff decisions (appeals) or requests to vary provisions of the ordinance (variances, special 
exceptions, etc.), the new legislation necessitates amendments to those ordinances. In addition, special 
rules apply to making decisions that are quasi-judicial in nature. The Board of Commissioners is 
authorized by statute to delegate quasi-judicial decision making to the Board of Adjustment, the first 
board in local government specifically authorized by statute and especially trained to deal with aspects of 
quasi-judicial decision making.  
 
Affected ordinances include: 
 
 1) Ordinance to Regulate High Impact Land Uses 
 2) Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance 
 3) Ordinance to Regulate Junkyards and Automotive Graveyards 
 4) Ordinance to Regulate Wind Energy Systems  
 5) Ordinance to Govern Structures on Land Adjacent to National Park Service Land 
 6) Ordinance to Govern Subdivisions & Multi-Unit Structures 
 7) Ordinance to Regulate Signs 
 8) Height of Structures Ordinance 
 9) Manufactured Home Parks Ordinance 
  
PUBLIC HEARING AND NOTICE: 
Prior to taking action on many of the proposed amendments that follow, the Board of Commissioners 
must hold a duly advertised public hearing.   
 
 
 

020414 BCC Meeting

124



2 | P a g e  
 

PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION: 
The Planning Board will review and comment on the proposed amendments prior to the public hearing. 
No plan consistency statement is necessary as local ordinance making authority in North Carolina is 
derived from and limited by State law.   
 
COUNTY COMMISSIONERS ACTION: 
The Commissioners’ approval of these amendments is considered both reasonable and in the public 
interest because the County is obliged to comply with state law.  
 
The following pages contain proposed amendments to affected Country ordinances.  
The text proposed to be removed is shown struck-through and new text proposed is shown in 
bold print. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

020414 BCC Meeting

125



3 | P a g e  
 

1)  ORDINANCE TO REGULATE HIGH IMPACT LAND USES  
  
ARTICLE IV  PERMIT REQUIRED 
 
 Section 1. Permitting Process.  
   
  (a) Development Permits Required  
  No building or other structure subject to this ordinance shall be erected, moved, added to, or  
  structurally altered without a Development Permit having been issued by the Ordinance   
  Administrator. No building permit shall be issued except in conformity with the provisions of this 
  ordinance. or as duly authorized by the Board of Commissioners upon timely appeal pursuant to  
  Article V of this ordinance.  
 
 Section 2. Appeal of Permit Denial.  
 If a Development Permit is finally denied, the applicant may  appeal the action of the Ordinance 
 Administrator to the Board of Commissioners Adjustment, as specified in Article V. Notice of 
 appeal must be received in writing by the Clerk for the Board of Commissioners within twenty (20) 
 thirty (30) days of the final decision of the Ordinance Administrator or notice to the applicant of the 
 decision, whichever is later. Appeals received after this twenty (20) thirty (30) day period are not 
 timely and shall not be considered.  
  
ARTICLE V APPEALS AND VARIANCES 
 
 Section 1. Board of Commissioners Adjustment. The Watauga County Board of Commissioners 
 Adjustment, as established by N.C.G.S. § 153A-25 et seq. shall hear all appeals, requests for 
 variances, and all challenges to the decision or interpretation of the Ordinance Administrator.  
  
 Section 2. Powers of Board of Commissioners Adjustment Powers. The Board shall have the 
 following powers:  
  
  (a) To hear and decide and review appeals from any final binding order, requirement, decision,  
  or determination made by the Ordinance Administrator in the performance of its duties charged  
  with enforcement of the ordinance; and  
 
  (b) To hear and decide applications for variances from the requirements of this Ordinance in  
  accordance with Article V, Section 5. Nothing in this Section shall be construed to broaden the  
  power of the Board to permit a use by variance beyond that power given in Article V, Section 5  
  below.  
  
 Section 3. Administration. The Board shall adopt rules of procedures and regulations for the conduct 
 of its affairs.  
 
 Section 4. Quorum and Vote Required.  
 A quorum of the Board, necessary to conduct any business of the Board, shall consist of four-fifths of 
 the total membership of the Board. The concurring vote of a simple majority of the total membership 
 of the Board shall be necessary in order to:  
  
  (a) Reverse any order, requirement, decision or determination of the Ordinance Administrator;  
  (b) Decide in favor of the applicant any matter upon which it is required to pass by this   
  Ordinance; or  
  (c) Approve an application for a variance 

020414 BCC Meeting

126



4 | P a g e  
 

 A concurring vote of a simple majority of the members shall be required to decide upon all 
 matters to come before the board. For the purpose of this subsection, vacant positions on the 
 board and members who are disqualified from voting shall not be considered members of the 
 board for calculation of the requisite majority.      
 
 Section 5. Application of the Variance Power. 
 A variance shall only be allowed by the Board of Commissioners in cases involving practical 
 difficulties or unnecessary hardships. Any authorizing of a variance shall not destroy the intent of the 
 ordinance. Any authorized variance shall be recorded in the minutes of the Watauga County Board of 
 Commissioners. A hardship, as used in the context of this section, shall be considered to be some 
 unique or unusual character of the proposed site, including but not limited to unique size, shape, 
 contour, or distance requirement. An economic hardship to the applicant is not to be considered for a 
 variance.   
 
 The Board may grant a variance upon finding that the following conditions exist:  
  1) Extraordinary and exceptional conditions exist pertaining to the particular place or property in  
  question because of its size, shape, or topography.  
  2) The variance will not confer upon the applicant any special privileges that are, or would be,  
  denied  to other similarly situated individuals.  
  3) This ordinance would deprive the applicant of rights commonly enjoyed by other similarly  
  situated individuals.  
  4) The variance would not seriously deter from the purpose and intent of this ordinance and will  
  not be injurious to the neighborhood or to the general welfare.  
  5) The special circumstances causing the need for variance(s) are not the fault of the applicant.  
  
 When unnecessary hardships would result from strict application of the ordinance, upon 
 application by an aggrieved party with standing, the Board of Adjustment may hold a 
 hearing pursuant to NCGS §160A-388 (a2) and may grant variances to the provisions of the 
 ordinance in accordance with the standards and procedures established in NCGS §160A-388(d), 
 and as established by County policy.  
 
 The Board may impose reasonable conditions upon the granting of any variance in order to protect 
 the public interest or neighboring property owners. Violation of any such conditions shall be a 
 violation of this ordinance and subject to the penalties set forth in Article VI of this ordinance. 
  
ARTICLE VI  ENFORCEMENT AND PENALTIES  
 
 Section 5. Ordinance Amendments. This Ordinance may be amended by the Board of Commissioners 
 following a public hearing on the proposed changes. The Board shall cause notice of the hearing to be 
 published once a week for two successive calendar weeks. The notice shall be published the first time 
 not less than 10 days nor more than 25 days before the date fixed for the hearing. In computing such 
 period, the day of publication is not to be included but the day of the hearing shall be included.  
  
 Should any Federal or State regulation or statute  incorporated herein by reference or otherwise 
 referred to herein, be changed or amended, or should either require or mandate a different 
 procedure or change or impose new, different or additional requirements, then, in that event, 
 this ordinance shall be deemed to have been amended without further action to have complied 
 with such new, additional or amended requirements.  
 
 

020414 BCC Meeting

127



5 | P a g e  
 

2) FLOOD DAMAGE PREVENTION ORDINANCE 
 
ARTICLE 3.   GENERAL PROVISIONS. 
 
 SECTION I.   AMENDMENTS 
 
 This Ordinance may be amended by the Board of Commissioners following a public hearing on 
 the proposed changes.  
  
 Should any Federal or State regulation or statute  incorporated herein by reference or otherwise 
 referred to herein, be changed or amended, or should either require or mandate a different 
 procedure or change or impose new, different or additional requirements, then, in that event, 
 this ordinance shall be deemed to have been amended without further action to have complied 
 with such new, additional or amended requirements.  
 
ARTICLE 4.   ADMINISTRATION.  
 
 SECTION D. CORRECTIVE PROCEDURES. 
 
 (4) Appeal: Any owner who has received an order to take corrective action may appeal the 
 order to the local elected governing body Board of Adjustment by giving notice of appeal in 
 writing to the Floodplain Administrator and the Clerk to the Board of Commissioners 
 within ten (10) thirty (30) days following issuance of the final binding order. In the absence 
 of an appeal, the order of the Floodplain Administrator shall be final. The local governing 
 body Board of Adjustment shall hear an appeal within a reasonable time and may affirm, 
 modify and affirm, or revoke the order. 
  
 (5) Failure to Comply with Order: If the owner of a building or property fails to comply with 
 an order to take corrective action for which no appeal has been made or fails to comply with 
 an order of the governing body Board of Adjustment following an appeal, the owner shall 
 be guilty of a misdemeanor and shall be punished at the discretion of the court.  
 
 SECTION E.  VARIANCE PROCEDURES. 
 
 (1) The Board of Adjustment as established by Watauga County, hereinafter referred to as 
 the “appeal board”, shall hear and decide requests for variances from the requirements of this 
 ordinance. When unnecessary hardships would result from strict application of the ordinance,  
 upon application by an aggrieved party with standing, the Board of Adjustment may hold a 
 hearing pursuant to NCGS §160A-388 (a2) and may grant variances to the provisions of the 
 ordinance in accordance with the standards and procedures established in NCGS §160A-388(d), 
 and as established by County policy.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

020414 BCC Meeting

128



6 | P a g e  
 

3) ORDINANCE TO REGULATE JUNKYARDS AND AUTOMOTIVE GRAVEYARDS 
 
VIII. REMEDIES AND PENALTIES FOR VIOLATION 
  
 D. Appeal. Any person who receives a notice of violation may, within ten (10) business thirty (30) 
 days of the day the notice was received, submit a written appeal to the Board of County 
 Commissioners Adjustment. The appeal is taken by filing notice with the county clerk and shall 
 specifically state the reasons for the appeal. with a copy of the notice of violation attached thereto. 
 The County Manager shall schedule a hearing, for the next regular Board of County Commissioners’ 
 meeting, and notify the appellant, and the Board of County Commissioners shall render a decision 
 upholding, denying or modifying the notice of violation. Accrual and imposition of the civil penalties 
 shall be stayed pending the decision. However, there will be no stay for equitable remedies available 
 to the County. If the decision of the Solid Waste Enforcement Officer is affirmed, accrual and 
 imposition shall resume. The Board of Adjustment shall hear and decide upon appeals within a 
 reasonable timeframe and may affirm, modify or revoke the administrator’s decision.  
 
XII. AMENDMENTS 
  
 This Ordinance may be amended by the Board of Commissioners following a public hearing on 
 the proposed changes. 
  
 Should any Federal or State regulation or statute  incorporated herein by reference or otherwise 
 referred to herein, be changed or amended, or should either require or mandate a different 
 procedure or change or impose new, different or additional requirements, then, in that event, 
 this ordinance shall be deemed to have been amended without further action to have complied 
 with such new, additional or amended requirements.  
 
XIII. EFFECTIVE DATE  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

020414 BCC Meeting

129



7 | P a g e  
 

4) ORDINANCE TO REGULATE WIND ENERGY SYSTEMS 
 
Section 6 Appeals and Variances 
  
 6.1. Board of Commissioners Adjustment: The Watauga County Board of Commissioners, as 
 established by N.C.G.S. § 153A-25 et seq. Adjustment shall hear all appeals, requests for variances, 
 and all challenges to the decision or interpretation of the Ordinance Administrator.  
  
 6.2. Powers of Board of Commissioners Adjustment Powers: The Board shall have the following 
 powers:  
  
  (a) To hear and decide and review appeals from any final binding order, requirement, decision,  
  or determination made by the Ordinance Administrator in the performance of its duties charged  
  with enforcement of the ordinance; and  
  
  (b) To hear and decide applications for variances from the requirements of this Ordinance in  
  accordance with Section 6.5. Nothing in this Section shall be construed to broaden the power of  
  the Board to permit a use by variance beyond that power given in Section 6.5 below.  
  
 6.3. Administration: The Board shall adopt rules of procedures and regulations for the conduct of its 
 affairs.  
  
 All meetings of the Board shall be open to the public. The Board shall keep a record of its meetings, 
 including of the vote of each member on every question, a fair and accurate summary of the evidence 
 submitted to it, the documents (or accurate copies thereof) submitted to it and of all official actions.   
  
 The Board shall give due notice of matters coming before it.  
  
 In presenting an appeal, the petitioner shall bear the burden of proof, which shall be by the greater 
 weight of the evidence.  
 
 All evidence presented to the Board of Commissioners Adjustment shall be sworn.  
 
 The person acting as Chairman of the Board and the Clerk of the Board is are authorized to 
 administer oaths to any witnesses in any matter coming before the Board.  
  
 Application for variances, requests for interpretations and appeals for review of decisions of the 
 Ordinance Administrator shall be filed with the County Clerk.  for the Board, as agent for the Board, 
 on forms provided by the Clerk.  
  
 It shall be the responsibility of the Ordinance Administrator to notify by certified mail the applicant 
 or appellant of the disposition which the Board makes of any matter before it.  
 
 It shall be the responsibility of the Ordinance Administrator to issue a permit in accord with the 
 Board’s action on an appeal or application, if a permit is authorized by the Board action. 
  
 6.4.   Quorum and Vote Required:  
 A quorum of the Board, necessary to conduct any business of the Board, shall consist of four-fifths of 
 the total membership of the Board.  
 

020414 BCC Meeting

130



8 | P a g e  
 

 The concurring vote of a simple majority of the total membership of the Board shall be 
 necessary in order to:  
  (a) Reverse any order, requirement, decision or determination of the Ordinance    
  Administrator;  
  (b) Decide in favor of the applicant any matter upon which it is required to pass by this   
  Ordinance; or  
  (c) Approve an application for a variance 
  
 A concurring vote of a simple majority of the members shall be required to decide upon all 
 matters to come before the board. For the purpose of this subsection, vacant positions on the 
 board and members who are disqualified from voting shall not be considered members of the 
 board for calculation of the requisite majority.      
 
 6.5. Board of Commissioners: Upon application by an aggrieved party with standing, the 
 Watauga County Board of Commissioners shall hear and decide upon appeals of a Planning 
 Board decision in accordance with procedures outlined in Section 6.3. The Board of
 Commissioners shall conduct a de novo review and render a decision affirming, reversing, 
 remanding or modifying the decision of the Planning Board.  
 
 6.6.   Application of the Variance Power.  
 A variance shall only be allowed by the Board of Commissioners in cases involving practical 
 difficulties or unnecessary hardships. Any authorizing of a variance shall not destroy the intent of the 
 ordinance. Any authorized variance shall be recorded in the minutes of the Watauga County Board of 
 Commissioners. A hardship, as used in the context of this section, shall be considered to be some 
 unique or unusual character of the proposed site, including but not limited to unique size, shape, 
 contour, or distance requirement. An economic hardship to the applicant is not to be considered 
 for a variance.   
 
  The Board may grant a variance upon finding that the following conditions exist:  
  1) Extraordinary and exceptional conditions exist pertaining to the particular place or property in  
  question because of its size, shape, or topography.  
  2) The variance will not confer upon the applicant any special privileges that are, or would be,  
  denied  to other similarly situated individuals.  
  3) This ordinance would deprive the applicant of rights commonly enjoyed by other similarly  
  situated individuals.  
  4) The variance would not seriously deter from the purpose and intent of this ordinance and will  
  not be injurious to the neighborhood or to the general welfare.  
  5) The special circumstances causing the need for variance(s) are not the fault of the applicant.  
  
 When unnecessary hardships would result from strict application of the ordinance, upon 
 application by an aggrieved party with standing, the Board of Adjustment may hold a 
 hearing pursuant to NCGS §160A-388 (a2) and may grant variances to the provisions of the 
 ordinance in accordance with the standards and procedures established in NCGS §160A-388(d), 
 and as established by County policy.  
 
 The Board may impose reasonable conditions upon the granting of any variance in order to protect 
 the public interest or neighboring property owners. Violation of any such conditions shall be a 
 violation of this ordinance and subject to the penalties set forth in Section 7 of this ordinance. 
 
 6.7. Application of Interpretation Power: An appeal from an order, requirement, or decision 
 of the Ordinance Administrator shall be decided by the Board duly supported by competent 

020414 BCC Meeting

131



9 | P a g e  
 

 evidence. In exercising this power, the Board shall act in a prudent manner so that the 
 purposes and intent of the Ordinance shall be served. No decision shall have the effect of 
 varying the terms of the Ordinance or permitting as a matter of right any use otherwise 
 limited or prohibited hereunder.  

 
6.8. Appeal Stays Further Proceedings: An appeal to the Board of Commissioners 
Adjustment from a decision or determination of the Ordinance Administrator stays all 
proceedings in furtherance of the decision or determination appealed from, except as 
provided in Section 6.9, during the pendency of the appeal.  
 
6.9. Exceptions to Stay of Action: An appeal to the Board of Commissioners Adjustment of 
a decision or determination of the Ordinance Administrator shall not stay proceedings in 
furtherance of the decision or determination appealed from, if the Ordinance Administrator 
certifies either:  
 
 (a) That a stay would cause imminent peril to life or property; or  
 (b) That the situation subject to the appeal is transitory in nature and therefore, an appeal 
 would seriously interfere with enforcement of this Ordinance.  
 
In each instance, the Ordinance Administrator shall set forth in the certificate facts to support 
its conclusion.  
 
6.10. Appeals of Board Actions: Every decision of the Board of Adjustment or Board of 
Commissioners shall be subject to review at the instance of any aggrieved party in the 
Superior Court by proceedings in the nature of a petition for writ of certiorari. Such 
proceedings in the Superior Court shall be initiated within thirty (30) days of the filing of the 
decision in the office of the Ordinance Administrator or the delivery of the notice required in 
Section 6.3, whichever is later. Appeals not received within this thirty (30) day period are not 
timely. The Superior Court is authorized to stay enforcement of this ordinance during the 
pendency of an appeal from the decision of the Board of Commissioners upon a hearing and 
the posting of a bond sufficient to the Court which will adequately protect the interests of the 
County. 

  
Section 7 Enforcement and Penalties 

 
7.5. Ordinance Amendments: This Ordinance may be amended by the Board of 
Commissioners following a public hearing on the proposed changes. The Board shall cause 
notice of the hearing to be published once a week for two successive calendar weeks. The 
notice shall be published the first time not less than 10 days nor more than 25 days before the 
date fixed for the hearing. In computing such period, the day of publication is not to be 
included but the day of the hearing shall be included. 

  
 Should any Federal or State regulation or statute  incorporated herein by reference or otherwise 
 referred to herein, be changed or amended, or should either require or mandate a different 
 procedure or change or impose new, different or additional requirements, then, in that event, 
 this ordinance shall be deemed to have been amended without further action to have complied 
 with such new, additional or amended requirements.  

020414 BCC Meeting

132



10 | P a g e  
 

5) STRUCTURES ADJACENT TO NATIONAL PARK SERVICE LAND 
 
Article III – Appeal  
 
 Appeals may be taken from a decision under this ordinance by the Department of Planning and 
 Inspections to the Board of Commissioners Adjustment by giving written notice of appeal to the 
 Department and Clerk to the Board of Commissioners within ten (10) thirty (30) days following the 
 day a permit is denied. The appeal shall contain the grounds thereof.  
 
Article IV – Guidelines for Special Exceptions Variances  
 
 On hearing an appeal, the Watauga County Board of Commissioners may overrule the decision of the 
 Department of Planning and Inspections where it finds the Department has incorrectly interpreted and 
 applied this ordinance. In addition, the Board may grant exceptions to this ordinance in situations 
 where it finds a hardship exists.  
 
 When unnecessary hardships would result from strict application of the ordinance, upon 
 application by an aggrieved party with standing, the Board of Adjustment may hold a 
 hearing pursuant to NCGS §160A-388 (a2) and may grant variances to the provisions of the 
 ordinance in accordance with the standards and procedures established in NCGS §160A-388(d), 
 and as established by County policy.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

020414 BCC Meeting

133



11 | P a g e  
 

6) ORDINANCE GOVERNING SUBDIVISIONS AND MULTI-UNIT STRUCTURES 
  
ARTICLE XI VARIANCES 
  
 Where, because of topographical or other conditions peculiar to the site, or as otherwise specified in 
 this ordinance (Sections 70.05, 70.012, 71.025, 71.028), strict adherence to the provisions of this 
 ordinance would cause an unnecessary hardship, the Planning Board may authorize a variance, if such 
 variance can be made without destroying the intent of this ordinance. The Planning Board shall make 
 written findings which either supports the granting of the variance or which specify why the variance 
 should not be granted. All requests for variances must be made in writing by the developer or by the 
 affected property owner. All requests for variance from setbacks shall be accompanied by a surveyed 
 drawing showing property lines, right-of-way lines, existing structures, and proposed structures. 
 
 A variance may also be proper when environmental concerns are viewed in light of the spirit and 
 intent of the planning ordinances. Such request may be made by the applicant or any member of the 
 planning board. Variances will not ordinarily be granted if the special circumstances on which the 
 applicant relies are a result of the actions of the applicant or owner or previous owners. 
 
 Reasonable conditions may be imposed in connection with a variance as deemed necessary to protect 
 the best interests of the surrounding property or neighborhood, and otherwise secure the purpose and 
 requirement of this chapter. 
 
 Variances may be granted in the sole discretion of the planning board for any subdivision plan only if 
 all three expressly written findings below are made: 
  (1) That a strict or literal interpretation and enforcement of the specified standard or requirement  
  would result in practical difficulty, unnecessary hardship or adverse environmental impact; and 
  (2) That the granting of the variance will not be detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare; 
  and 
  (3) That the granting of the variance would support general objectives contained within this  
  ordinance. 
  
 When unnecessary hardships would result from strict application of the ordinance, upon 
 application by an aggrieved party with standing, the Planning Board may hold a hearing 
 pursuant to NCGS §160A-388 (a2) and may grant variances to the provisions of the ordinance 
 in accordance with the standards and procedures established in NCGS §160A-388(d), and as 
 established by County policy.  
 
ARTICLE XII PENALTIES 

 
SECTION 124. Appellate Procedure. 
 
Any action taken by the Watauga County Planning Board or staff pursuant to this ordinance adverse 
to any party with standing to contest said decision, may appeal be taken to the Watauga County 
Board of Commissioners within thirty (30) days of the date of the decision by submitting written 
notice of appeal to the Watauga County Manager’s Office. The notice of appeal shall state the 
grounds for the appeal with specificity. The County Manager shall schedule a hearing for the next 
regular Board of County Commissioners meeting (provided the appeal is received prior to the 
meeting agenda deadline) and notify the appellant of this meeting. The Board of County 
Commissioners shall conduct a de novo review and render a decision affirming, reversing, 
remanding or modifying the decision of the Planning Board.  

020414 BCC Meeting

134



12 | P a g e  
 

 
 Any action taken by the Ordinance Administrator pursuant to this ordinance adverse to any 
 party with standing to contest said decision, may be taken by giving notice of appeal in 
 writing to the Ordinance Administrator and the Clerk to the Board of Commissioners 
 within ten (10) thirty (30) days following issuance of the final order. The Board of 
 Adjustment shall hear an appeal within a reasonable time and may affirm, modify 
 and affirm, or reverse the order. 

  
A decision of the Watauga County Planning Board or the Board of Commissioners on the 
appellants appeal may be appealed to the Watauga County Superior Court by the appellant. Such 
appeal shall be in the nature of a petition for certiorari and must be filed within thirty (30) days of the 
date of the decision of either the Board. of County Commissioners. 
 
Nothing in this section shall be deemed to amend or replace any appeals procedure set forth more 
specifically under any specific provision of this ordinance. 
 

ARTICLE XIII AMENDMENTS 
 
SECTION 130. Amendment Procedure. 
 
This ordinance may be amended from time to time by the Board of County Commissioners as herein 
specified, but no amendment shall become effective unless it shall have been proposed by or shall 
have been submitted to the Planning Board for review and recommendation. The Planning Board 
shall have thirty (30) days within which to submit its report. If the Planning Board fails to submit a 
report within the specified time, it shall be deemed to have recommended approval of the amendment. 
 

 Should any Federal or State regulation or statute  incorporated herein by reference or otherwise 
 referred to herein, be changed or amended, or should either require or mandate a different 
 procedure or change or impose new, different or additional requirements, then, in that event, 
 this ordinance shall be deemed to have been amended without further action to have complied 
 with such new, additional or amended requirements.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

020414 BCC Meeting

135



13 | P a g e  
 

7) ORDINANCE TO REGULATE SIGNS 
 
I.  Variances and Appeals 
 
 1. Appeal: With Request for Variance: Recognizing that the strict application of the 
 requirements of this chapter may work an undue hardship on certain applicants, variances 
 from the strict application of the provisions of this chapter may be granted by the Watauga 
 County Board of Adjustment. Each application for a variance shall be in writing and shall 
 state the reasons for the request for variance. The basis for a claim of hardship shall not be 
 economics alone. The Board of Adjustment shall grant the variance, grant the variance with 
 conditions, or deny the variance within sixty (60) days of the date of appeal from the decision 
 of the County administrative official. When unnecessary hardships would result from strict 
 application of the ordinance, upon application by an aggrieved party with standing, the Board 
 of Adjustment may hold a hearing pursuant to NCGS §160A-388 (a2) and may grant variances 
 to the provisions of the ordinance in accordance with the standards and procedures established 
 in NCGS §160A-388(d), and as established by County policy.  
 
 2. Appeal: Without Request for Variance. Any sign owner or applicant who alleges that a 
 County administrative official acted erroneously in enforcing this ordinance may appeal the 
 decision of that administrative official to the Board of Adjustment as specified in I.1 above. 
  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

020414 BCC Meeting

136



14 | P a g e  
 

8) HEIGHT OF STRUCTURES ORDINANCE 
 
ARTICLE III – APPEALS 
 
 Appeals may be taken from a final binding decision under this ordinance by the Department of 
 Planning and Inspections to the Board of Commissioners Adjustment by giving written notice of 
 appeal to the Department and Clerk to the Board of Commissioners within ten (10) thirty (30) days 
 following the day a permit is denied. The appeal shall contain the grounds thereof.  
 
ARTICLE IV – GUIDELINES FOR SPECIAL EXCEPTIONS VARIANCES 
 
 On hearing an appeal, the Watauga County Board of Commissioners may overrule the 
 decision of the Department of Planning and Inspections where it finds the Department has 
 incorrectly interpreted and/or applied this ordinance. In addition, the Board of 
 Commissioners may grant exceptions to this ordinance in situations where it finds that the 
 proposed structure meets the following criteria:  
 
  (a) The structure complies with the provisions of the National Fire Protections   
  Association Life and Safety Code (NFPA 101), if applicable.  
   
  (b) The structure will have adequate access to water and approved sewage disposal  
  system that will not have any adverse effect on the land and surrounding area.  
   
  (c) The structure would not substantially alter the character of the land on which it is to  
  be constructed, would not have a substantially adverse effect upon the value of adjacent  
  properties, and will be in harmony with the area in which it is located.  
 
 When unnecessary hardships would result from strict application of the ordinance, upon  
 application by an aggrieved party with standing, the Board of Adjustment may hold a   
 hearing pursuant to NCGS §160A-388 (a2) and may grant variances to the provisions of the 
 ordinance in accordance with the standards and procedures established in NCGS §160A-388(d), 
 and as established by County policy.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

020414 BCC Meeting

137



15 | P a g e  
 

9) MANUFACTURED HOME PARKS ORDINANCE 
  
 Section 9. Variances  
  
 Where, because of topographical or other conditions peculiar to the site, strict adherence to the 
 provisions of this ordinance would cause an unnecessary hardship, the Planning Board may authorize 
 a variance, if such variance can be made without destroying the intent of this ordinance. Any 
 ordinance thus authorized is required to be entered in writing in the Official Minutes of the Planning 
 Board with the reasoning set forth on which the departure was justified. All requests for variances 
 must be made in writing by the developer. 
 When unnecessary hardships would result from strict application of the ordinance, upon 
 application by an aggrieved party with standing, the Planning Board may hold a hearing 
 pursuant to NCGS §160A-388 (a2) and may grant variances to the provisions of the ordinance 
 in accordance with the standards and procedures established in NCGS §160A-388(d), and as 
 established by County policy.  
 
 Section 11. Amendment procedure.  

 
This ordinance may be amended from time to time by the Board of County Commissioners, but no 
amendment shall become effective unless it shall have been proposed by or shall have been submitted  
to the Planning Board for review and recommendation. The Planning Board shall have thirty (30) 
days within which to submit its report. If the Planning Board fails to submit a report within the 
specified time, it shall be deemed to have approved the amendment. All amendments must be 
submitted through the public hearing process in accordance with NCGS 153A. 

  
 Should any Federal or State regulation or statute  incorporated herein by reference or otherwise 
 referred to herein, be changed or amended, or should either require or mandate a different 
 procedure or change or impose new, different or additional requirements, then, in that event, 
 this ordinance shall be deemed to have been amended without further action to have complied 
 with such new, additional or amended requirements.  

 
Section 16. Appeals Procedure.  
 
Every decision of the Planning Board shall be subject to de novo review at the request of any 
aggrieved party with standing by the Watauga County Board of Commissioners. The appeal to  
the Commissioners must be filed within 30 days of the filing by the secretary of the Planning Board 
of the decision in the office of the Department of Planning and Inspections or the delivery of the  
first class mail notice to the aggrieved party, whichever is later. actual or constructive notice of the 
Planning Board’s decision.  

020414 BCC Meeting

138



020414 BCC Meeting

139



020414 BCC Meeting

140



020414 BCC Meeting

141



020414 BCC Meeting

142



020414 BCC Meeting

143



Blank Page 
 
 

020414 BCC Meeting

144



AGENDA ITEM 10: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
A. Proposed Amendments to the Ambulance Franchise Agreement 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
The Board approved the addition of a twelve (12) hour ambulance crew for Fiscal Year 2014.  In 
conjunction with the additional crew, staff was able to negotiate the waiver of the CPI increase 
for 2014.  The proposed agreement reflects the additional twelve (12) hour crew and the waiving 
of the CPI escalator for 2014.  The agreement has an effective date of January 1, 2014 and runs 
through December 31, 2019.  Changes were made as requested by the Board on the January 21, 
2014 meeting to reflect the effective date of the subsidy adjustment to be 2015 and updating the 
years in Section 31.  In addition, Section 15 was corrected to read from time to time instead of 
from time from time.  The changes have been reviewed and approved by the County Attorney. 
   
North Carolina General Statute 153A-46 requires a grant, renewal, extension, or amendment of 
any franchise to be passed at two regular meetings of the Board of Commissioners before it may 
be adopted.  As this is the second reading, Board action is required to adopt the changes to the 
Ambulance Franchise Agreement as presented.   
 
 
  

020414 BCC Meeting

145



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA  
AMBULANCE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 

COUNTY OF WATAUGA 
 
 
THIS  AMBULANCE  FRANCHISE  AGREEMENT  (hereinafter  “Agreement”)  is made  and 
entered onto this the 1st. day of January 2014 by and between WATAUGA COUNTY, a 
body politic, organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State of North 
Carolina  (hereinafter  the  “County”),  and WATAUGA MEDICS,  INC.,  a  North  Carolina 
corporation, (hereinafter “Franchisee”). 
 

WHEREAS,  effective  October  4,  1999,  the  Watauga  County  Board  of 
Commissioners,  by  authority  contained  in  NC.G.S,  153A‐250,  adopted  Ordinance 
Number XXX, titled “Watauga County Ambulance Franchise Ordinance” (hereinafter the 
“Ordinance”); and 

 
WHEREAS, County and Franchisee executed an Ambulance Franchise Agreement 

dated  November  16,  2004,  pursuant  to  the  Watauga  County  Ambulance  Franchise 
Ordinance, Ordinance Number XXX, pursuant to the authority granted to the County by 
NCGS 153‐250; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to said Ordinance, the County issued a Request For Proposal 

(hereinafter the “RFP”) soliciting bids and specifying certain minimum conditions of any 
franchise to be issued pursuant thereto; and 

 
WHEREAS,  Craig  J.  Sullivan,  on  behalf  of Watauga Medics,  Inc.,  submitted  a 

written bid entitled Bid Proposal  for Watauga County Ambulance  Service  (hereinafter 
the “Bid”) pursuant to said RFP; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County, at its November 1, 2004, meeting resolved to accept the 

Bid Option 3‐1  contained  in  said bid,  to wit:    that  the bidder will provide  service  (as 
further  specified below) with  the County  to provide an annual  subsidy of as  set  forth 
below in monthly installment; and 

 
WHEREAS, at the February 20, 2007, meeting of the Watauga County Board of 

County  Commissioners,  the  County  agreed  to  amend  the  agreement  to  clarify  and 
restated  the  subsidy  payment  that  were  paid  or  are  to  be  paid  pursuant  to  the 
Agreement; and 

 
WHEREAS,  the parties have discussed an extension of  the Agreement between 

the County and Franchisee  in an effort to  lock‐in costs to the County and allow for the 
Franchisee to expand his operations to improve services in Watauga County. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual benefits and 

obligations set forth below, the County and the Franchisee agree as follows: 
 

1. The County does hereby grant unto Franchisee a non‐exclusive franchise for 
the operation of an ambulance  service  for  the provision of emergency and 

020414 BCC Meeting

146



non‐emergency  medical  transport  services,  in  accordance  with  the 
Ordinance, the RFP, the bid and this Agreement for a period of seven years. 
 

2. This franchise may not be sold, assigned or transferred nor may it in any way 
vest  in any person,  firm or corporation, other  than  the Franchisee and any 
such  sale,  transfer  or  assignment  shall  cause  this  franchise  to  terminate 
immediately, at the opinion of Watauga County. 

 
3. Any  change  in  legal  or  equitable  ownership  of  Franchisee,  its  corporate 

shares, or any of its equipment shall immediately terminate the Franchise, at 
the option of Watauga County. 

 
4. The initial term of the Franchise shall be from 12:00 A.M. on January 1, 2014, 

and through and including the 31st day of December, 2019.  Either party, for 
any  reason, may with or without  cause  terminate  this  agreement  and  the 
Franchise upon one hundred eighty (180) calendar days written notice to the 
other party, unless sooner terminated for reasons set forth in the Ordinance 
or by agreement of the parties hereto. 

 
5. At  the  end  of  the  aforesaid  term,  unless  the  parties  agree  otherwise  in 

writing  or  either  party  has  given  notice  of  termination  as  aforesaid,  the 
Franchise and all of the terms of this Agreement (subject to any amendments 
as may be entered  into) shall be automatically renewed for continuing one‐
year terms. 

 
6. The Franchise  shall provide all personnel, vehicles,  supplies and equipment 

to provide all emergency and non‐emergency ambulance service necessary in 
all parts of Watauga County on a 24 hour per day, 7 day per week basis, at 
not  less  than  an  EMT‐Paramedic  level  of  service  (except  so  long  as  an 
agreement for such acceptable to the County  is  in place, the Franchise may 
provide  ambulance  service  to  the  Flat  Springs  area  of  Avery  County  in 
exchange for Avery County’s providing pursuant to agreement with Franchise 
ambulance  service  to  the  Town  of  Beech Mountain  in Watauga  County).  
Each ambulance of the Franchisee shall be available to render assistance to 
all portions of Watauga County. 

 
7. Franchisee shall keep two (2) two‐wheel drive ambulances and two (2) four‐

wheel drive ambulances fully equipped, licensed and available for emergency 
and  non‐emergency  service  at  all  times,  subject  to  routine  maintenance 
down  time.    As  of  January  1,  2014,  Franchisee  shall  keep  three  of  the 
ambulances manned  and  available  on  a  24  hour  per  day,  7  day  per week 
basis  and  a  third  ambulance  manned  and  available  nine  hours  per  day, 
Monday  through  Saturday,  six  (6)  days  per week.    Not  less  than  two  (2) 
ambulances will be kept within the County at all times for services pursuant 
to this Agreement, one of which will be manned and the other of which will 
be  manned  or  will  have  personnel  on  call  for  immediate  service.    Each 
ambulance  necessary  to meet  the  foregoing  requirements  shall  have  less 
than 50,000 miles on it at the time initially put in service by Franchisee.  The 

020414 BCC Meeting

147



Franchisee will  immediately notify the County  in writing of any additions or 
deletions to its inventory of operational ambulances.  Franchise shall employ 
a fourth ambulance and crew to work seven days per week, twelve hours per 
day.  In additional new service for Watauga County, and the Franchisee shall 
strive  not  to  place  or  dispatch  said  fourth  crew  for  service  outside  the 
territorial  jurisdiction of Watauga County except  for emergency  transports, 
when any of Franchisee’s other crew is away on a routine transport.   
 

8. The Franchisee shall maintain not  less than two (2) bases, the first of which 
will be provided by the County as set forth below.  The Franchisee must bear 
all  responsibility  for  finding  other  station(s)  and  the  costs  associated with 
acquiring, equipping, and maintaining such. 

 
9. Franchisee’s first base of operations will be located at the facilities owned by 

the County at 921 West King Street, Boone, North Carolina 28607, or  such 
other  location  as may  be  provided  by  the  County.    The  County will make 
available, at no charge  to Franchisee, said  the  facilities currently  located at 
921 West King Street, Boone, North Carolina 28607, specifically consisting of 
5,263  square  feet,  including  a  garage, offices,  sleeping  area  and  a  training 
room.   The County shall provide property and casualty hazard  insurance for 
the  structure  at  said  location.    The  Franchisee  must  bear  all  utilities, 
maintenance, medical  supplies,  equipment  and  other  necessary  expenses 
associated  with  said  facilities  provided  by  the  County.    Franchisee’s 
obligation to provide maintenance to the structure shall be limited to repairs 
of  ordinary  wear  and  tear  to  the  reasonable  satisfaction  of  the  County.  
Franchisee’s two propane heaters and the  lift  located  in the bay area of the 
building  shall  remain  the  property  of  Franchisee,  so  long  as  Franchisee 
repairs any damage to the building caused by their removal. 
 

10. The Franchisee  shall maintain a  second base  to be  located at 133  Longvue 
Dr., Boone, North Carolina and the Franchisee shall be solely responsible for 
providing all things necessary for operation of the service at the second base, 
including  but  not  limited  to  the  building,  utilities,  maintenance,  medical 
supplies, equipment and necessary operational expenses associated with the 
facilities. 

 
11. Each  ambulance  used  by  Franchisee  must  be  in  compliance  with  all 

applicable Federal, State, and local laws relating to personnel, health, safety, 
equipment, vehicle design, and sanitation.  Franchisee shall keep the County 
provided with a  copy of  the current State  certification  for each ambulance 
owned or operated by Franchisee. 

 
12. The  Franchisee  shall  be  responsible  for  all  future  capital  purchase  and  all 

operational,  including  (but  not  limited  to)  salaries,  employee  benefits  and 
expenses,  insurance, mobile operational costs, and all other fees, expenses, 
and charges necessary to remain in compliance with the County’s ordinance 
and the franchise granted to the Franchisee. 

 

020414 BCC Meeting

148



13. The  Franchisee  shall provide  the County with  a  list of  all of  its  equipment 
which is in service, on not less than an annual basis, and the Franchisee shall 
assure that all of  its equipment  in use will be removed from service once  it 
becomes obsolete or needs to be replaced due to normal wear and tear. 

 
14. Each ambulance of Franchisee  shall be equipped with an eight  (8)  channel 

VHF  radio.    Frequencies  shall  be  assigned  by  the  Communications  Center 
designated by the County.   Franchisee shall relay all ambulance movements 
to the Communications Center designated by the County, via two‐way radio. 

 
15. The Franchisee shall assure that its EMS personnel have access to operational 

Franchisee‐issued  pagers,  or  other  communication  devices  along  with 
accurate phone lists are on file to notify said personnel if the regular squads 
of the Franchisee are unable to handle the volume of calls that may come in 
from time to time. 

 
16. The Franchisee shall at all times meet the following performance standards: 

 
a. The average  response  time  for an ambulance,  calculated on a Monthly 

basis, shall not exceed ten minutes. 
 

b. The  Franchisee  shall  place  no  required  ambulance  in  service  for  initial 
operation that has more than 50,000 miles. 

 
17. The Franchisee shall not allow any paramedic to practice in Watauga County 

until  he  or  she  has  passed  an  oral  examination  given  by  a  panel  of  the 
Medical  Director  and  unless  he  or  she  holds  current  certifications  in 
advanced  training courses  specified by  the Medical Director.    It will be  the 
responsibility  of  the  Franchisee  to  coordinate  with  Watauga  County  to 
ensure a qualified Medical Director remains active in the system. 
 

18. The  Franchisee  shall  enter  into  and  assure  the  existence  of  mutual  aid 
agreements with ambulance services  in counties adjoining Watauga County 
to  provide  assistance  in  the  event  of  disaster  or  other  special  need,  said 
agreements  to be at  the  sole expense of  the Franchisee.   Additionally,  the 
Franchisee shall implement and keep in place a Reserve Program, creating a 
County‐wide manpower  bank  to  be  available  in  the  event  of  a  disaster  or 
other  special  need.    All  training  will  be  open  to  Reserves  and  any  other 
individuals  with  NC  Basic  EMT  Certification,  or  higher,  who  also  meet 
Franchisees  other  reasonably  developed  standards.    The  Franchisee  shall 
make all reasonable efforts to provide “ride time” to said reserves, to keep 
their skills current. 

 
19. Franchisee  shall  enter  into  mutual  aid  agreements  to  have  and  make 

available assistance of and to all volunteer rescue squads in the County when 
requested by the County, the Franchisee or the volunteer rescue squads. 

 

020414 BCC Meeting

149



20. The  Franchisee  shall  make  its  resources  available  to  Watauga  County 
Emergency Management Office during  its emergency  activities,  and during 
any  declared  State  of  Emergency  shall  work  in  conjunction  with  the 
Emergency Operations Center. 

 
21. The  Franchisee  shall  oversee  a  First  Responder  program,  which  the 

Franchisee  will  assist  the  local  fire  departments  with  the  needs  of  the 
program.    The  Franchisee  shall  assist  in  the  development  and 
implementation of  operating  guidelines  for  the program,  and  shall  restock 
the supplies (not to include capital equipment or any drugs such as epi pens) 
used  in  the  services  of  the  First  Responder.    Further,  the  Franchisee  shall 
coordinate  continuing  education  requests  and  other  training  for  all  First 
Responders,  as  appropriate.   All  of  the  foregoing  shall  be  provided  to  the 
program  and  First  Responders  at  no  cost  to  the  First  Responders  or  their 
sponsoring agency or agencies, all with no additional cost to the County. 

 
22. The Franchisee shall operate on a fee for services basis, and shall only  issue 

the  following  charges  (when  incurred)  at  the  following  rates,  which  are 
hereby approved by the County: 

 
a. Rates for BLS calls:    $300.00 

 
b. Rates for ALS calls:  (non‐emergency)  $350.00 

  (Emergency)  $385.00 
  ALS II:  $550.00 

 
c. Charge per mile:    $8.50 

 
d. Waiting time per hour (after first hour)  $25.00 

 
e. No transport calls: 

 
A charge of $50.00  is authorized  for no  transport calls when Franchisee 
responds to assist patients who just need assistance or patients who have 
initiated a 911 call and have changed their mind once Franchisee arrived.  
No charge under this subsection may be assessed when a 911 call is made 
by a bystander without the request of the injured party. 
 

No other fees, expenses, or charges may be made without prior Resolution of 
the County’s Board of Commissioners approving such. 

 
23. The  Franchisee  shall  be  responsible  for  billing  and  collection  of  its  fees, 

charges and expenses.  The Franchisee must submit for payment from, third‐
party  payers  and  accept  assignment  of Medicare  and Medicaid  Franchisee 
shall  maintain  accurate  records  of  its  charges  and  reimbursements  from 
Medicare  and  other  sources  of  all  charges  pursuant  to  the  foregoing 
authorized  increases, and shall compile and maintain such  information  in a 

020414 BCC Meeting

150



form useful  to  the County, which  information shall be shared  from  time  to 
time with the County, as the County may desire. 

 
24. Franchisee  shall maintain  all  records  required by  Sect XII of  the Ordinance 

and  shall  submit  to  the  County  by  the  15th  of  the month  following  each 
quarter a data sheet containing all of the information specified in subsection 
f of  said  Section of  the Ordinance.   The  Franchisee  shall  submit an annual 
report containing all of the information required by said Section and further 
specified  by  subsection  g  of  said  Section  by  the  15th  day  of  the month 
following  the  last quarter of each  year.   The  Franchisee  shall maintain  the 
aforesaid records in an organized fashion, and allow the County full access to 
said  information as  the County deems appropriate.   By  the 15th of May of 
each year,  the Franchisee  shall  submit  to  the County manager a budget of 
how  it  intends to spend the County’s funds  in the upcoming fiscal year, and 
within  ninety  (90)  days  of  the  end  of  the  Franchisee’s  fiscal  year,  the 
Franchisee  shall  furnish  the  County  a  full  and  complete  certified  audit  of 
Franchisee’s  operations  conducting  by  a  CPA  in  accordance with  generally 
accepted auditing standards of Franchises’s operations, which shall include a 
fully‐audited  financial  statement  of  the  Franchisee.  The  Franchisee’s  fiscal 
year shall be from 1 January to 31 December of each year. 

 
25. Each year, Franchisee shall provide the County a detailed explanation of  its 

billing  policies,  sufficient  to  allow  County  to  fully  understand  the  billing 
methods and practices of the Franchisee. 

 
26. Franchisee  shall  fully allow  the County  to  inspect all  records, premises and 

equipment  of  the  Franchisee  at  any  time  in  order  to  confirm  and  insure 
compliance with the ordinance and the franchise granted herein. 

 
27. In  providing  ambulance  service  as  described  herein  the  Franchisee  shall 

comply with all laws of the United States, the State of North Carolina and the 
County  of  Watauga,  including  rules  and  regulations  promulgated  by  the 
Medical  Care  Commission  and  the NC Medical  Board,  and  resolutions  and 
ordinances  of  the Watauga  County  Board  of  Commissioners.    Further,  the 
Franchisee  shall  abide by  all  applicable US  and North Carolina  Labor  laws, 
including, but not limited to, Occupational Safety and Health regulations, Fair 
Labor Standards Act and the Americans with Disabilities Act and regulations 
pursuant  thereto.    The  County  shall  have  the  right  to  inspect  all  records 
pertaining to these labor laws and ensure compliance by the Franchisee.  The 
Franchisee  shall  maintain  records  on  all  employee  training  conducted 
pursuant to Occupational Safety and Health regulations and shall make these 
available to the County upon request 

 
28. Franchisee  shall maintain  in  place  an  escrow  account,  a  surety  bond,  an 

irrevocable letter of credit, or other guarantee or undertaking satisfactory to 
the  County  attorney,  in  an  amount  equal  to  the  amount  of  the  contract 
subsidy applicable to any one hundred eighty (180) day period following the 
date  such  obligation may  arise  to  assure  payment  to  the  County  for  any 

020414 BCC Meeting

151



liability of the Franchisee to the County arising out of this Agreement, of the 
Ordinance,  or  of  Franchisee’s  operation,  and  to  pay  for  any  substitute 
performance the County may cause to be provided upon Franchisees default 
in performance hereunder or under the Ordinance. 

 
29. The Franchisee agrees and acknowledges that the above‐referenced facilities 

of  the County  located  at  921 West King  Street, Boone, North Carolina  are 
fully  adequate  facilities  for  the  housing  of  their  base  operation  at  said 
location. 

 
30. For  the period of  this agreement,  the County shall prepay to Franchisee an 

annual subsidy in monthly installments as follows: 
 
Jan. 1, 2014 ‐ Dec. 31, 2014:  $958,518.12 + CPI waived. 
Jan. 1, 2015 ‐ Dec. 31, 2015:  Previous Years amount + CPI adjustment 
Jan. 1, 2016 ‐ Dec. 31, 2016:  Previous Years amount + CPI adjustment 
Jan. 1, 2017 ‐ Dec. 31, 2017:  Previous Years amount + CPI adjustment 
Jan. 1, 2018 ‐ Dec. 31, 2018:  Previous Years amount + CPI adjustment 
Jan. 1, 2019 ‐ Dec. 31, 2019:  Previous Years amount + CPI adjustment 
 
(this  amount  to  be  adjusted  by  the  CPI  as  explained  below.    Each  year 
thereafter the previous year’s amount will be adjusted as explained below: 
 
On  each  January  1,  commencing  on  January  1,  20145,  the  agreed‐upon 
County subsidy shall be adjusted and revised as follows: 
 
a. 60  percent  of  the  adjustment  shall  reflect  the  annual  increase  or 

decrease  of  the  Consumer  Price  Index  (CPI),  South  Urban  Size  C,  as 
published by the US Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics. 
 

b. 20  percent  of  the  adjustment  shall  reflect  the  annual  increase  or 
decrease  of  the  CPI,  Medical  Care  Services  as  published  by  the  US 
Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics. 
 

c. 20  percent  of  the  adjustment  shall  reflect  the  annual  increase  or 
decrease of the CPI, Transportation, as published by the US Department if 
Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics. 

 
In  the  event  the  CPI  components  produce  a  negative  adjustment,  once 
totaled,  the  Subsidy  amount  will  not  be  adjusted.    In  the  event  the  CPI 
components produce a percentage greater than 6% the annual  increase will 
be 6% plus on‐half (50%) of the amount over 6% up to 10% (For Example,  if 
the CPI escalator is computed at 7.4% the annual increase would  be 6.7% or 
6%  +  .50  x  1.4  =  6.7).  Any  amount  over  10%  will  not  be  considered  for 
adjustment ie the maximum adjustment will be 8%.  Or 6% + .50 x 4% = 8%). 
 
 

020414 BCC Meeting

152



31. The  County  will  calculate  the  adjustment  based  upon  the  most  recent 
November  annual  report  of  Franchisee  as  compared  to  the  report  of  the 
previous November.    (For  example,  the  January  1,  20145,  adjustment will 
reflect the CPI changes between November 2013 and November 2014.) 
 

32. Franchisee shall at all times during the existence of the Franchise, keep in full 
force  and  effect  the  insurance  coverage  as  required  by  Section  X  of  the 
Ordinance entitled “Insurance” and all  insurance  required by  law,  including 
liability insurance on its vehicles and workers’ compensation coverage for its 
personnel.   Franchisee shall provide proof of coverage to the County and to 
assure  that  each  insurance  policy  contains  provisions  that  assure  that  the 
County receives at least 90 days prior notice from each carrier of any lapses, 
cancellations, denials, changes or  limitations  in coverage.   The County shall 
be shown as an additional insured on all of Franchisee’s liability insurance. 

 
33. The Franchisee shall indemnify and hold harmless the County and its officers 

and employees from and against all suits, actions,  liability, claims, demands, 
judgments, recoveries or expenses, including court costs and attorney’s fees, 
against or  incurred by  the County on  account of or  in  any way  connected 
with or arising from any claim of injury, loss or damage which arises out of or 
is  in any manner connected with Franchisee’s operations;  including, but not 
limited  to  any  claim  or  injury,  loss  or  damage,  suit,  action,  liability,  claim, 
demand,  judgment, recovery, or expense caused or alleged to be caused  in 
whole  or  in  part  by  any  negligent  act,  omission,  error,  professional  error, 
mistake, accident or other fault of the Franchisee, any subcontractor of the 
Franchisee, or an officer, employee or agent of the Franchisee. 

 
34. Franchisee is to provide ambulance service as an independent contractor and 

neither  Franchise  nor  any  of  its  personnel  shall  be  an  employee,  agent  or 
representative of the County in any way. 

 
35. The  Franchisee  and  its  agents,  contractors  and  subcontractors  shall  not 

discriminate on the basis of race, color, creed, national origin, ancestry, age, 
sex, religion or disability in any policy or practice and Franchisee shall assure 
that  any  agreements  or  practices  it  enters  into  or  engages  in  expressly 
provide for such nondiscrimination. 

 
36. This  Agreement  is  entered  into  pursuant  to  the  RFP  which  Franchisee 

acknowledges;  to  the  Ordinance  and  all  amendments  as  may  be  made 
thereto, which Franchisee is and will remain familiar with and agrees to fully 
abide by; to the bid by Watauga Medics, Inc., and to the County’s resolutions 
of  November  1,  2004,  accepting  said  bid.    Except  to  the  extent  this 
Agreement imposes standards above the minimum standards specified in the 
Ordinance,  in  the  event  of  any  inconsistency  among  or  between  the 
foregoing,  the Ordinance  shall control and as between  this Agreement and 
the RFP, the Bid, and the Resolution, this Agreement shall control, but all of 
the  terms  of  the  aforesaid  documents  not  inconsistent  with  the  other 
documents shall remain in and have full force and effect. 

020414 BCC Meeting

153



 
37. Should any portion of  this Agreement be  ruled or determined  invalid,  such 

invalidity shall not effect the enforceability of the remaining portions hereof.  
This Agreement shall not be amended or modified except  in writing, signed 
by all parties hereto, with  the County’s consent  to  such modification  to be 
only by prior resolution of its Board of Commissioners. 

 
IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, the said parties hereto have hereunto caused this instrument 
to be signed in their names by their duly authorized officers. 
 
 
  WATAUGA COUNTY      WATAUGA MEDICS, INC. 
 
 
by:  ________________________    by:  ________________________ 
  Nathan A. Miller, Chairman      Craig Sullivan, President 
  Watauga County Board of Commissioners 
 
ATTEST: 
  ________________________      ________________________   
  Anita J. Fogle,      Pamela Palmer, 
  Clerk to the Board      Corporate Secretary 
 
 
 
  (SEAL)  (SEAL) 
 
 
 
This instrument has been pre‐audited in the manner required by the Local Government 
Budget and Fiscal Control Act. 
 
 
____________________________ 
Margaret Pierce 
Watauga County Finance Officer 
 

020414 BCC Meeting

154



AGENDA ITEM 10: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
B. Proposed Lease for Probation and Parole 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS:   
 
As you are aware, the State of North Carolina began requiring counties to furnish space at no 
cost for court-related functions several years ago.  Prior to that time, the Administrative Office of 
the Courts paid the County rent for their Probation and Parole Offices.  Even though the County 
does not receive any rent, the Department of Public Safety requires that a lease be executed 
detailing the stipulations.  Staff had requested a revised lease several months before the 
expiration date, October 30, 2013, and was provided the lease before you on December 9, 2013.   
 
The Board directed the County Attorney to review the current lease and make any necessary 
changes and resubmit to the Board for consideration and approval.   
 
Staff seeks direction from the Board.   
 
  

020414 BCC Meeting

155



 

Page 1 of __5 
 

THIS LEASE DOES NOT BECOME EFFECTIVE UNTIL EXECUTED  
BY THE NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY 

 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
 

LEASE AGREEMENT 
 
 
THIS LEASE AGREEMENT, made and entered into this the        day of                        2014, 

by and between COUNTY of WATAUGA, hereinafter designated as Lessor, and the STATE OF 
NORTH CAROLINA, hereinafter designated as Lessee; 

 
W I T N E S S E T H: 

 
WHEREAS, authority to approve and execute this lease agreement was delegated to the 

Department of Administration by resolution adopted by the Governor and Council of State on the 1st 
day of September, 1981; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Department of Administration has delegated to this State agency the authority 

to execute this lease agreement by a memorandum dated the 17th day of April, 1985; and 
 
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the rental hereinafter agreed to be paid and the terms 

and conditions hereinafter set forth, Lessor does hereby let and lease unto Lessee and Lessee hereby 
takes and leases from Lessor for and during the period of time and subject to the terms and conditions 
hereinafter set out certain space in (See Below) County of Watauga, North Carolina, more 
particularly described as follows: 

 
Being+/- 1,808 net square feet of officeSuch space locatedas may be allocated by the Watauga 
County Board of Commissioners at or near 133 N.North Water Street, Boone, Watauga 
County, North Carolina. 

 
 

(DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY- PROBATION & PAROLE) 
 
THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THIS LEASE AGREEMENT ARE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1. The term of this lease shall be for a period of three (3) yearsone (1) year commencing on 

the 1st day of January, 2014, or as soon thereafter as the leased premises are ceded to the Lessee and 
terminating on the 30th day of December, 201631st day of December, 2014.  Unless sixty days notice 
is provided by either party prior to the end of the current term, this Lease shall automatically renew 
for successive one year terms. 

 
2. The Lessee shall pay to the Lessor as rental for said premises the sum of $1.00 Dollars 

per term to be payable within fifteen (15) days from receipt of invoice in triplicate. 
 

The Lessee agrees to pay the aforesaid rental to Lessor at the address specified, or, to 
such other address as the Lessor may designate by a notice in writing at least fifteen (15) days prior 
to the due date. 

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

020414 BCC Meeting

156



 

Page 2 of __5 
 

 
3. Lessor agrees to furnish to the Lessee, as a part of the consideration for this lease, the 

following services and utilities to the satisfaction of the Lessee. 
 
a. Heating facilities, air conditioning facilities, adequate electrical facilities, adequate 

lighting fixtures and sockets, hot and cold water facilities, and adequate toilet facilities. 
 
b. Janitorial services and supplies including maintenance of lawns, parking areas, common 

areas and disposal of trash. 
 
c. All utilities except telephone.  

 
d.c. Parking as available. 

 
e.d. The lessor covenants that the leased premises are generally accessible to persons with 

disabilities. This shall include access into the premises from the parking areas (where 
applicable), into the premises via any common areas of the building and access to an 
accessible restroom. 

 
4. During the lease term, the Lessor shall keep the leased premises in good repair and 

tenantable condition, to the end that all facilities are kept in an operative condition. Maintenance shall 
include, but is not limited to furnishing and replacing electrical light fixture ballasts, air conditioning 
and ventilating equipment filter pads, if applicable, and broken glass.  In case Lessor shall, after 
notice in writing from the Lessee in regard to a specified condition, fail, refuse, or neglect to correct 
said condition, or in the event of an emergency constituting a hazard to the health or safety of the 
Lessee's employees, property, or invitees, it shall then be lawful for the Lessee in addition to any 
other remedy the Lessee may have to make such repair at its own cost and to invoice the amount 
thereof to the Lessor.  The Lessor reserves the right to enter and inspect the leased premises, at 
reasonable times, and to make necessary repairs to the premises. 

 
5. It is understood and agreed that Lessor shall, at the beginning of said lease term as 

hereinabove set forth, have the leased premises in a condition satisfactory to Lessee, including 
repairs, painting, partitioning, remodeling, plumbing and electrical wiring suitable for the purposes 
for which the leased premises will be used by Lessee. 

 
6. The Lessee shall have the right during the existence of this lease, with the Lessor’s prior 

written consent, to make alterations, attach fixtures, additions, structures or signs in or upon the 
leased premises.  Such fixtures, additions, structures or signs so placed in or upon or attached to the 
leased premises under this lease or any prior lease of which this lease is an extension or renewal shall 
be and remain the property of the Lessee and may be removed therefrom by the Lessee prior to the 
termination of this lease or any renewal or extension thereof, or within a reasonable time thereafter.  
The Lessee shall have no duty to remove any improvement or fixture placed by it on the premises or 
to restore any portion of the premises altered by it.  In the event Lessee elects to remove his 
improvements or fixtures and such removal causes damage or injury to the demised premises, Lessee 
will repair only to the extent of any such damage or injury. 

 
7. If the said premises be destroyed by fire or other casualty without fault of the Lessee, this 

lease shall immediately terminate.  In case of partial destruction or damage by fire or other casualty 
without fault of the Lessee, so as to render the premises untenantable in whole or in part, and during 

020414 BCC Meeting

157



 

Page 3 of __5 
 

such period of repair, and if the Lessor cannot provide suitable office space, the Lessee shall have the 
right to obtain similar office space at the expense of Lessee with reimbursement from the County or 
the Lessee may terminate the lease by giving fifteen (15) days written notice to the Lessor. 

 
8. Lessor shall be liable to Lessee for any loss or damages suffered by Lessee which are a 

direct result of the failure of Lessor to perform an act required by this lease, and provided that Lessor 
could reasonably have complied with said requirement. 

 
  
9.8. Upon termination of this lease, the Lessee will peaceably surrender the leased premises in 

as good order and condition as when received, reasonable use and wear and damage by fire, war, 
riots, insurrection, public calamity, by the elements, by act of God, or by circumstances over which 
Lessee had no control or for which Lessor is responsible pursuant to this lease, excepted. 

 
10.9. The Lessor agrees that the Lessee, upon keeping and performing the covenants and 

agreements herein contained, shall at all times during the existence of this lease peaceably and 
quietly have, hold, and enjoy the leased premises free from the adverse claims of any person. 

 
11.10. The failure of either party to insist in any instance upon strict performance of any of 

the terms and conditions herein set forth shall not be construed as a waiver of the same in any other 
instance. No modification of any provision hereof and no cancellation or surrender thereof shall be 
valid unless in writing and signed and agreed to by both parties. 

 
12.11. Any hold over after the expiration of the said term or any extension thereof, shall be 

construed to be a tenancy from month to month, and shall otherwise be on the terms and conditions 
herein specified, so far as applicable; however, either party shall give not less than sixty (60) days 
written notice to terminate the tenancy. 

 
13.12. The parties to this lease agree and understand that the continuation of this lease 

agreement for the term period set forth herein, or any extension or renewal thereof, is dependent upon 
and subject to the appropriation, allocation or availability of funds for this purpose to the agency of 
the Lessee responsible for payment of said rental. The parties to thi s lease also agree that in the event 
the agency of the Lessee or that body responsible for the appropriations of said funds, in its sole 
discretion, determines, in view of its total local office operations that available funding for the 
payment of rents are insufficient to continue the operation of its local offices on the premise leased 
herein, it may choose to terminate the lease agreement set forth herei n by giving Lessor written 
notice of said termination, and the lease agreement shall terminate immediately without any further 
liability to Lessee. 

 
14.13. All notices herein provided to be given, or which may be given by either party to the 

other, shall be deemed to have been fully given when made in writing and deposited in the United 
States mail, certified and postage prepaid and addressed as follows:  To the Lessor at 814 W. King 
Street, Suite 205, Boone, North Carolina 28607 and the Lessee at 4227 Mail Service Center, 
Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-4227. Nothing herein contained shall preclude the giving of such 
notice by personal service. The address to which notices shall be mailed as aforesaid to either party 
may be changed by written notice. 

 
 
"N.C.G.S. § 133-32 and Executive Order 24 prohibit the offer to, or acceptance by, any State 

020414 BCC Meeting

158



 

Page 4 of __5 
 

Employee of any gift from anyone with a contract with the State, or from any person seeking to do 
business with the State.  By execution of any response in this procurement, you attest, for your entire 
organization and its employees or agents, that you are not aware that any such gift has been offered, 
accepted, or promised by any employees of your organization." 

 
IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, this lease has been executed by the parties hereto, m duplicate 

originals. as of the date first above written. 
 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
 
 
     (SEAL) 
By:  Drew Harbinson, 
 Director of Purchasing & Logistics 
 
 
 
 
 
 
LESSOR: 
 
 
     (SEAL) 
By: The County of Watauga 
 Deron Geouque, County Manager 
 Nathan A. Miller, Chairman 

 
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
      
Secretary 
Anita Fogle, Clerk to the Board 
(CORPORATE SEAL) 
 
 

  

020414 BCC Meeting

159



 

Page 5 of __5 
 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
 
COUNTY OF      
 
I,     , a Notary Public in and for the County and State aforesaid, do 

hereby certify that Deron GeouqueNathan A. Miller, personally came before me this day and 

acknowledged that he is the Chairman of the Watauga County ManagerBoard of 

Commissioners, and that by authority and given as an act of Watauga County and acknowledged 

the due execution of the foregoing instrument in its name. 

 
WITNESS my hand and Notarial Seal, this the          day of                               , 2014. 
 
 
 

      
                   Notary Public 

 
 
My Commission Expires:        
 
 

020414 BCC Meeting

160



AGENDA ITEM 10: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
C. Tentative Annual Pre-Budget Retreat Agenda  

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
A draft agenda for the Board’s retreat scheduled for February 21 and 22 is enclosed for Board 
review.  The agenda may change between now and the retreat based on input from the Board or 
the County Manager receiving additional items for consideration.  County staff will start the 
process of preparing and compiling the information for the retreat.  Please feel free to contact me 
during the upcoming weeks should you have any questions or require additional information.   
 
 
 
  

020414 BCC Meeting

161



TENTATIVE RETREAT AGENDA 
WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 

COMMISSIONERS’ BOARD ROOM 
WATAUGA COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING, BOONE, NC 

 

FEBRUARY 21 & 22, 2014 
 

TIME TOPIC PRESENTER PAGE

 FRIDAY, FEBRUARY 21, 2014  
12:00 PM LUNCH & OPENING REMARKS MR. DERON GEOUQUE 
12.30 PM FY 2014 REVIEW AND DISCUSSION OF 2015 BUDGET MS. MARGARET PIERCE 

 A.  Revenues  
 B. Expenditures  
 C.  Funding of Non-County Departments  
 D. Debt Service Report  
 E.  Budget Calendar  

1:00 PM BREAK  
1:15 PM SCHOOL BOARD FUNDING ISSUES  

 A. Schools’ Capital Improvement Plan  
 B. FY 2014 Funding Needs  

2:30 PM TOURISM DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (TDA) MR. MATT VINCENT, & 
MR. WRIGHT TILLEY 

3:00 PM HEALTH DEPARTMENT MATTERS MS. BETH LOVETTE 
3:30 PM LANDFILL ENERGY PROJECTS DISCUSSION  

 A. Report on Recycling and Methane to Electricity Project MS. LISA DOTY 
 B. Review of Solar Energy Project MR. GED MOODY 

4:00 PM CALDWELL COMMUNITY COLLEGE & TECHNICAL INSTITUTE  DR. KENNETH BOHAM 
4:15 PM TAX MATTERS MR. LARRY WARREN 

 A. Revaluation Update  
 B. Revaluation Schedule  

5:00 PM REVIEW OF CURRENT CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (CIP) MR. DERON GEOUQUE  
 A. Current CIP Status Report & MR. ROBERT MARSH 
 B. Old AppalCART Building  
 C. CCC&TI Watauga Continuing Education Center Building  
 D. New River Property  
 E. Future Projects for Consideration  

5:30 PM WRAP UP, GOALS & OBJECTIVES, BOARD DIRECTIVES  
6:00 PM RECESS UNTIL SATURDAY, FEBRUARY 23, 2013 AT 9:00 AM  

 SATURDAY, FEBRUARY 22, 2014  
9:00 AM WATAUGA COMMUNITY HOUSING TRUST REPORT MR. SCOTT EGGERS 

 A. Board Re-Appointments  
 B. Update  

9:05 AM ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT MATTERS MR. JOE FURMAN 
 A.  Conceptual Plan for Business and Technology Park  
 B. Update  
 C. Economic Development Commission (EDC) Report/Discussion  
 D. Appalachian Enterprise Center (AEC)  

9:30 AM PLANNING AND INSPECTIONS MATTERS MR. JOE FURMAN 
 A. Update on Greenway Projects  

10:00 AM EMS REPORT MR. CRAIG SULLIVAN 
11:30 AM MISCELLANEOUS & COMMISSIONER MATTERS MR. DERON GEOUQUE 

 A. Health Savings Account Banking Relationship  
 B. Update on New DSS Director  
 C. State Issues  
 D. Commissioners Matters  

11:45 AM WRAP UP, GOALS & OBJECTIVES, BOARD DIRECTIVES  
12:00 PM ADJOURN  

 

020414 BCC Meeting

162



AGENDA ITEM 10: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
D. Boards & Commissions 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Recreation Commission 
The Town of Boone recommends that Mr. Greg Dobbins and Mr. Joseph Robinson be appointed 
as Town of Boone representatives on the Watauga Recreation Commission.  The above are 
second readings and, therefore, action may be taken, if so desired. 
 
 
Watauga County Board of Adjustment 
One (1) appointment is still needed to the Watauga County Board of Adjustment which meets 
infrequently.  The two (2) zoned areas of the County (Valle Crucis and Foscoe-Grandfather) 
must be represented on the Board; traditionally an attempt has been made to appoint 
representatives of watershed protection areas as well.  The seat is an at-large representative, 
though Ms. Nicholson also resided in one of the watershed protection areas.  The other members 
represent Valle Crucis, Foscoe-Grandfather, Howards Creek watershed, and Middle Fork 
watershed. The term is for three (3) years.  
 
A volunteer application has been received by Mr. David Hill who is interested in serving.  This is 
a second reading and, therefore, action may be taken, if so desired. 
 
 
Town of Boone Board of Adjustment 
The Town of Boone recommends that Mr. Clinton Coffey be appointed as an Extra Territorial 
Jurisdiction (ETJ) representative on the Boone Board of Adjustment for a three-year term.  This 
is a second reading and, therefore, action may be taken, if so desired. 
 
 
Watauga Medical Center Board of Trustees 
The Watauga Medical Center Board of Trustees has recommended Mr. Sam Adams, Ms. Susan 
Roggenkamp, and Mr. Kenneth Wilcox for reappointment as Board Trustees.  Each of their 
terms would be effective January 1, 2014, through December 31, 2016.  This is a second reading 
and, therefore, action may be taken, if so desired. 
 
 
Watauga County Nursing Home Community Advisory Committee 
Ms. Julie Wiggins, Regional Ombudsman with High Country Council of Governments’ Area 
Agency on Aging, requests that Ms. Wanda Branch be reappointed to the Watauga County 
Nursing Home Community Advisory Committee for a three-year term.  This is a second reading 
and, therefore, action may be taken, if so desired. 
 

020414 BCC Meeting

163



 
Watauga County Nursing Home Community Advisory Committee (cont.) 
Ms. Julie Wiggins, Regional Ombudsman with High Country Council of Governments’ Area 
Agency on Aging, requests that both Ms. Karen Robertson and Dr. Larry Keeter be reappointed 
to the Watauga County Nursing Home Community Advisory Committee to fill vacancies that 
will exist as of March 1.  These are first readings and, therefore, no action is required at this 
time. 
 
 
Watauga County Adult Care Home Community Advisory Committee 
Ms. Julie Wiggins, Regional Ombudsman with High Country Council of Governments’ Area 
Agency on Aging, requests that Mr. Harold Eller be reappointed to the Watauga County Adult 
Care Home Community Advisory Committee for a one-year term.  This is a first reading and, 
therefore, no action is required at this time. 
 
 
AppalCART 
AppalCART has recommended the appointment of Mr. Quint David as the Boone Town Council 
representative to the AppalCART Board.  Mr. David’s appointment would coincide with his term 
as a Boone Council Member.  This is a first reading and, therefore, no action is required at this 
time. 
 
Watauga County Planning Board 
Mr. Ric Mattar’s term on the Watauga County Planning Board expired December 2013, and he is 
willing to continue serving if so appointed.  This is a first reading, however, staff is 
recommending the Board waive the policy and appoint Mr. Mattar as he is the current Chairman 
of the Planning Board. 
 
 
  

020414 BCC Meeting

164



1

Anita.Fogle

From: Kim Brown <Kim.Brown@townofboone.net>
Sent: Wednesday, December 18, 2013 3:32 PM
To: Anita.Fogle
Cc: Stephen Poulos
Subject: Watauga County Recreation Commission nominations
Attachments: WRC nominations.pdf

Anita:  At the December 17, 2013 regular meeting, the Boone Town Council nominated Mr. Greg Dobbins and Mr. Joseph 
Robinson to serve on the Watauga County Recreation Commission.  I have attached both applications for your information.  This 
should complete the Town's required nominations for this commission.  If you have any questions, please give me a call. 
  
Have a great afternoon! 
Kim 
 
Kimberly S. Brown, CMC 
Town Clerk 
Boone Town Hall 
PO Drawer 192 
Boone, NC 28607 
(828)268-6200/(828)268-6208 fax 
www.townofboone.net 
kim.brown@townofboone.net 
  
  
 
Email correspondence to and from this address is subject to public records requests pursuant to the North Carolina Public Records Law, 
resulting in monitoring and potential disclosure of this message to third parties.  

020414 BCC Meeting

165



020414 BCC Meeting

166



020414 BCC Meeting

167



020414 BCC Meeting

168



020414 BCC Meeting

169



020414 BCC Meeting

170



020414 BCC Meeting

171



020414 BCC Meeting

172



020414 BCC Meeting

173



020414 BCC Meeting

174



020414 BCC Meeting

175



020414 BCC Meeting

176



020414 BCC Meeting

177



020414 BCC Meeting

178



020414 BCC Meeting

179



020414 BCC Meeting

180



020414 BCC Meeting

181



020414 BCC Meeting

182



020414 BCC Meeting

183



1

Anita.Fogle

From: info@appalcart.com
Sent: Monday, January 27, 2014 5:43 PM
To: Anita.Fogle
Subject: AppalCART Board

Hi Anita, 
Mayor Andy Ball appointed new Boone-Town Councilmember, Quint David, 
to the AppalCART Board. Andy Ball off our Board and Quint David 
replacing. Let me know when it’s official.  
Thx, Joanna  

020414 BCC Meeting

184



1

Anita.Fogle

From: Joe Furman
Sent: Wednesday, January 29, 2014 11:36 AM
To: Deron.Geouque
Cc: Anita.Fogle; mattarre@appstate.edu
Subject: Planning Board term

Deron, 
I have just realized that Ric Mattar’s term as an at‐large member expired this past December. He had been re‐appointed in 
January, 2010 to the 4‐year at‐large term, but I entered in my records incorrectly as expiring in December, 2014 (2010 plus 4 
years = 2014). All terms expire in December. I just realized my error in not accounting for the appointment being retroactive. Mr. 
Mattar is a long‐time Board member as is currently serving as Chairman. He would like to be reappointed. I request that this be 
placed on the Commissioners’ February 4th meeting agenda, and that the second reading be waived. Thank you. 
Joe 
 
Joseph A. Furman, AICP 
Director, Watauga County Planning & Inspections and Economic Development 
331 Queen Street, Suite A 
Boone, NC 28607 
(828) 265-8043 
(828) 265-8080 (fax) 
 joe.furman@watgov.org  
 
 

020414 BCC Meeting

185



Blank Page 
 
 

020414 BCC Meeting

186



AGENDA ITEM 10: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
E. Announcements 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

020414 BCC Meeting

187



AGENDA ITEM 11: 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM 12: 

BREAK 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM 13: 

CLOSED SESSION 
Attorney/Client Matters – G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3) 
Land Acquisition – G. S. 143-318.11(a)(5)(i) 
 
 
 
 

020414 BCC Meeting

188


	Approval of Minutes
	Approval of the February 4, 2014, Agenda
	Proposed Proclamation Honoring the 50th Anniversary of Caldwell Community College and Technical Institute (CCC&TI)
	Smoky Mountain Center Matters
	A.  Presentation of Quarterly Report
	B.  Presentation of Annual Audited Financial Report

	Presentation of Appalachian District Health Department’s Annual Report and State of the County Health Report
	Proposed Appointment of Home and Community Care Block Grant (H&CCBG) Advisory Committee and Lead Agency
	Tax Matters
	A.  Monthly Collections Report
	B.  Refunds and Releases
	Proposed Amendments to the Following Ordinances as Recommended by the Watauga County Planning Board
	Miscellaneous Administrative Matters
	A.  Proposed Amendments to the Ambulance Franchise Agreement
	B.  Proposed Lease for Probation and Parole
	C.  Tentative Annual Pre-Budget Retreat Agenda
	D.  Boards & Commissions
	E.  Announcements

	Public Comment
	Break
	Closed Session



